
 

 

 
 
Lone Tree City Council Amended Agenda 
Tuesday, December 16, 2014 

 
Meeting Location:  City Council Meeting Room, Lone Tree Civic Center, 8527 Lone Tree Parkway. 
Meeting Procedure: The Lone Tree City Council and staff will meet in a public Study Session at 4:30pm. At 
6:00pm and following the meeting, if necessary, the Council Meeting will adjourn and convene in Executive Session. 
If an Executive Session is not necessary, Council will recess for dinner. The Regular Session will be convened at 
7:00pm. Study Sessions and Regular Sessions are open to the public, Executive Sessions are not. Comments from the 
public are welcome at these occasions: 1. Public Comment (brief comments on items not scheduled for a public 
hearing) 2. Public Hearings. Contact the City Clerk if special arrangements are needed to attend (at least 24 hours in 
advance).

 
4:30pm Study Session Agenda 

1. Construction Defects Ordinance Background Information  
2. First Amendment to RidgeGate Westside Annexation and Development Agreement  
3. Approval of Commissioners’ Choice Selection  
4. Cherry Creek Basin Water Quality Authority IGA  
5. Parking of Commercial Vehicles on Residential Streets  

 
6:00pm Executive Session Agenda 

1. Roll Call 
2. Executive Session 

 
7:00pm Regular Session Agenda 

3. Opening of Regular Meeting/Pledge of Allegiance 
4. Amendments to the Agenda and Adoption of the Agenda 
5. Conflict of Interest Inquiry 
6. Public Comment 
7. Announcements 
8. Presentations 

a. Transit Alliance 
9. Consent Agenda 

a. Minutes of the December 2, 2014 Regular Meeting 
b. Claims for the Period of November 24 – December 8, 2014 
c. Treasurer’s Report for October, 2014 

10. Public Works 
a. Approval of Contract for Pedestrian/Bridge Concept Design  

11. Administrative Matters 
a. Approval of First Amendment to the MOU re: Cultural Arts Center Site  
b. Resolution 14-23, ADOPTING THE 2015 GENERAL FUND, DEBT SERVICE 

FUNDS AND SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS BUDGETS  
c. Public Hearing: Resolution 14-24, ADOPTING A SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET 

AND APPROPRIATION FOR FY2014 DUE TO UNANTICIPATED 
REVENUES OR REVENUES NOT ASSURED AT THE TIME OF ADOPTION 
OF THE BUDGET   

d. Resolution 14-25, REGARDING ANNUAL ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
FOR THE CITY OF LONE TREE FOR 2015  

e. Resolution 14-26, APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 1 of 154



 

 

f. Approval of First Amendment to RidgeGate West Side Annexation and Development 
Agreement 

g. Approval of  RidgeGate West Side Agreement Regarding Dedication, Acceptance and 
Maintenance of Public Improvements and Sales Tax Sharing 

h. Approval of Amendment to Sales Tax Sharing Agreement 
12. Council Comments 
13. Adjournment 

 
City of Lone Tree Upcoming Events  

More info available at www.cityoflonetree.com and www.lonetreeartscenter.org 

 City Offices will be closed in observance of Christmas on December 25 and New Year’s 
Day on January 1 

 Home for the Holidays, December 18 – 24, 2014, LTAC 
 Sensory Friendly Family Tree – Home for the Holidays, Sunday, December 21, 2014, 

7:30 PM 
 Conjure, Saturday, December 27th, 8:00 PM and Sunday, December 28th, 1:30 PM, LTAC 
 Swing Xing, Sunday, January 4, 2015, 7:30 PM, LTAC 

 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 2 of 154



 

City Council Minutes Page 1 of 3 December 2, 2014 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF LONE TREE 
HELD 

December 2, 2014 
 

A regular meeting of the Council of the City of Lone Tree was held on Tuesday, 
December 2, 2014, at 7:00 p.m., at the Lone Tree City Council Chambers located 
at 8527 Lone Tree Parkway, Lone Tree, Colorado 80124. 
  

 
Attendance  
  In attendance were: 
 

James D. Gunning, Mayor 
Jacqueline Millet, Mayor Pro Tem 
Harold Anderson, Council Member 
Kim Monson, Council Member  
Susan Squyer, Council Member 
 
Also in attendance were: 

 
Seth Hoffman, City Manager 
Jennifer Pettinger, City Clerk 
Steve Hebert, Deputy City Manager 
Jeff Holwell, Economic Development Director 
Commander David E. Brown, Lone Tree Police Department 
Kristin Baumgartner, Finance Director  
Kelly First, Community Development Director 
Lisa Rigsby Peterson, Lone Tree Arts Center Director 
Neil Rutledge, City Attorney, White, Bear and Ankele, P.C. 
John Cotten, Public Works Director, TTG Corp. 
   

 
Call to Order 
  Mayor Gunning called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m., and observed that a  
  quorum was present. 

  
 
Pledge of Allegiance  
  Mayor Gunning led those assembled in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance. 
    
 
Amendments to the Agenda 

There were no amendments to the agenda.  
______ 

 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 3 of 154



 

City Council Minutes Page 2 of 3 December 2, 2014 

Conflict of Interest 
There was no conflict of interest. 
______ 

 
Public Comment 

Bill Robertson, 9278 E. Aspen Hill Circle, said he wanted to correct an article in 
the Voice; he is not a member of the Park Meadows Metropolitan District board 
but was a member of the Heritage Hills Metropolitan District board. Mr. 
Robertson also congratulated Mayor Gunning for receiving the Madison Award. 
______  
  

Announcements 
Lisa Rigsby Peterson, Lone Tree Arts Center Director announced upcoming 
events. 
______ 
  

Presentations 
Introduction of 2014 Holiday Card Selection Winner 
Mayor Gunning and Lisa Rigsby Peterson introduced Brielle Creamer, Nikki 
Damian-Campbell, Claire Stanley, Ella Marris, Megan Apotheker and Caroline 
Joyce from Lone Tree Elementary whose artwork has been chosen for the 2014 
City of Lone Tree Holiday Card. 
______  
 

Consent Agenda 
Mayor Gunning noted the following items on the Consent Agenda, which 
consisted of: 

 
 Minutes of the November 18, 2014 Regular Meeting 
 Claims for the period of November 10-24, 2014 

 
Council Member Anderson moved, Mayor Pro Tem Millet seconded, to approve 
the Consent Agenda. The motion passed with a vote of 5-0.   
   

 
Public Works 

Approval of Change Order #1 with Thoutt Brothers Concrete Construction Inc. 
for the 2014 Concrete Replacement 
 
John Cotten, Public Works Director, introduced the item.  
 
Council Member Squyer moved, Mayor Pro Tem Millet seconded, to approve 
Change Order #1 with Thoutt Brothers Concrete Construction Inc. for the 2014 
Concrete Replacement. The motion passed with a vote of 5-0. 
  
 

  

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 4 of 154



 

City Council Minutes Page 3 of 3 December 2, 2014 

Administrative Matters 
Public Hearing: Approval of Park Meadows Business Improvement District 
(BID) 2015 Operating Plan and Budget 

   
Mayor Gunning opened the public hearing at 7:15 p.m.  
 
Neil Rutledge, City Attorney, introduced the item and Pamela Schenck Kelly who 
spoke about the District.  
 
Mayor Gunning opened the public hearing for comment at 7:27 p.m.  
 
There was no public comment.   
 
The public hearing was closed at 7:27 p.m. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Millet moved, Council Member Anderson seconded, to approve 
the Park Meadows Business Improvement District (BID) 2015 Operating Plan and 
Budget. The motion passed with a vote of 5-0. 
  
Approval of Audit Engagement Letters with Wagner, Barnes & Griggs, PC for 
Audit Services for the Year 2014 
 
Kristin Baumgartner, Finance Director, introduced the item.  
 
Council Member Monson moved, Council Member Squyer seconded, to approve 
the Audit Engagement Letters with Wagner, Barnes & Griggs, PC for Audit 
Services for the Year 2014. The motion passed with a vote of 5-0. 
  
Amendments to Council Adopted Policy (CAP) 09-06 Commissions, Boards & 
Committees (CBC) Appointment Policy 
 
Jennifer Pettinger, City Clerk, introduced the item. 
 
Council Member Squyer moved, Mayor Pro Tem Millet seconded, to approve the 
amendments to Council Adopted Policy (CAP) 09-06 Commissions, Boards & 
Committees (CBC) Appointment Policy.  The motion passed with a vote of 5-0. 
   

Adjournment  
There being no further business, Mayor Gunning adjourned the meeting at  
7:42 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
       
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 5 of 154



 
STAFF REPORT 

      
 
TO:   Mayor Gunning and City Council 

FROM:  John P. Cotten, P.E. 

DATE:  December 8, 2014 

FOR:   December 16th Council Meeting 

SUBJECT: Conceptual Designs of the Lincoln Pedestrian Bridge 

Summary 
Public Works issued a Request for Proposals to three firms for the conceptual 
design, cost estimating and public presentation of two to three conceptual designs 
for the proposed Lincoln Avenue Pedestrian Bridge. Fentress Architects was 
selected from the three proposals that were submitted. 
 
The attached contract covers the preparation of three conceptual designs with 
preliminary cost ranges for each design. The cost of presentations at one public 
meeting as well as before the Planning Commission and the City Council are also 
included. 
 
Cost 
The contract value is $156,110 plus reimbursable expenses estimated at 
$15,610. 
 
Suggested Motions 
I recommend approval of the Agreement with Fentress Architects for conceptual 
design services for the Lincoln Avenue Pedestrian Bridge. 
 
Background 
This Agreement will provide conceptual architectural, structural and cost 
estimating services to assist the City in developing the preferred look and 
character of the proposed bridge. It will also assist in quantifying the budget cost 
for the selected design and provide for presentation of the designs to the public 
as well as the Planning Commission and the City Council. 
 
Fentress Architect and their sub-consultant BuroHappold Engineering have 
designed several similar structures of varying character and size. Fentress’ other 
sub-consultant Illume, who is a lighting consultant, has also done lighting design 
on several pedestrian bridges. Together they bring significant experience on this 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 6 of 154



type of project as well as a national and international reputation for innovative 
and timeless design of many types of structures. 
 
Brief descriptions of the firms involved in the team, which are excerpted from the 
proposal are included below. 
 
 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 7 of 154



 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 8 of 154



 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 9 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 10 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 11 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 12 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 13 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 14 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 15 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 16 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 17 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 18 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 19 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 20 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 21 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 22 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 23 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 24 of 154



City of Lone Tree, Colorado 

Pedestrian Bridge Conceptual Design:  Work Plan 

Fentress Architects | 20140080 | 2 December 2014 

 

Fentress Architects is pleased to have been selected to provide design services for the Pedestrian Bridge 

Conceptual Design for the City of Lone Tree.  Fentress has a long history of providing iconic contextual designs, 

and as such, the Lone Tree Pedestrian Bridge will become a signature element in the City.  This document will 

explain the work plan that we will implement in order to complete the Conceptual Design for the project. 

 

Information Gathering 

Initially, Fentress will gather the data that will be required for the project design to begin.  This will include  

 Survey information that will show any boundary limitations. 

 Utility information that will show areas that we should avoid placing structural elements. 

 Soils information for the landing areas of the bridge. 

 Photography of the area – both the proposed site and the context, including the Lone Tree Arts Center. 

 Jurisdictional information that might inform the design. 

 

Using this information, we will begin building a computerized three-dimension model of the bridge site. 

 

Kick-Off Meeting 

We look forward to the Kick-Off Meeting with the City of Lone Tree Staff.  In this meeting, our primary job will be 

listening to the staff explain the City’s needs and their vision for the Pedestrian Bridge.  We understand that the 

bridge will provide connectivity of the pedestrian and bicycle pathways along the Willow Creek Trail across Lincoln 

Avenue.  We will come prepared to review, and modify if necessary, our proposed schedule for the development of 

the design. 

 

Progress Meeting with the City Staff 

Following the Kick-Off Meeting, Fentress will develop concepts for the bridge.  Our goal is the development of at least 

three different concepts, each incorporating the information gathered at the Kick-Off Meeting.  Per your Request for 

Proposal, at least one of the schemes will develop a cable-stay option.  These concepts will be developed on a 

computer model of the site and the Lincoln Avenue roadbed, so that the relationship of the bridge to the road and the 

areas to the north and south of Lincoln are included in the studies.   

 

Bridge concepts will include the approach ramps on both ends of the bridge, as well as the170 foot span.  Fentress is 

known for sensitivity to context, and consideration will be given to the character and materials in the City of Lone 

Tree, specifically the Arts Center, and the landscape and signage standards for the City.  As the concepts are 

developed, we will review them with our structural engineer to ensure that the design is highly constructible. 

 

For the progress meeting with the City, we plan to bring prints showing plans, elevations, and three-dimensional 

views (which can remain with the City staff).  We will also bring the computer model, so that we can view the design 

from any direction.  At this point, models will be conceptual, and we will plan a dialog with the City that will inform the 

continuing development.  We will provide copies of the materials reviewed for the City Staff use, and will document 

the comments, questions, and directions from the meeting and provide meeting minutes to the City within one week 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 25 of 154



of each meeting date.  Following the progress meetings, Fentress will review the designs with the Cost Estimator for 

a very preliminary look at possible costs for the concepts. 

 

Design Charrette 

Fentress and the selected structural engineer will attend a design charrette.  We will arrive prepared with the further 

development of the designs reviewed in the progress meetings, as well as material samples.  We will be prepared to 

informally present the designs developed to date, and sit down with the Staff to discuss and draw as we share ideas 

on the continuing development of the designs.  We will prepare meeting minutes recording the discussion and 

recommendations that result from the meeting and delivering these to the City within one week of the meeting date.  

Immediately following the design charrette, we will meet with the Cost Estimator to secure an initial opinion of 

probable cost for each scheme. 

 

Public Input Meeting 

Following the Design Charrette with the City Staff, Fentress will integrate the ideas developed and prepare a 

presentation for the Public Input Meeting.  We anticipate providing an overall plan which includes an overview of the 

landscape at the base of the approach ramp, an enlarged plan of the approach ramp, elevation views of the east and 

west, and three dimensional views of the bridge from Lincoln, the pedestrian path, and the view within the bridge.  

Fentress would collaborate with the City on the presentation, and we will be prepared to walk with Lone Tree citizens 

through the proposed project and answer their questions.  Following the meeting, we propose to hold a brief follow up 

meeting with the City Staff to discuss the Public comments and their implementation.  We will document all of the 

comments received in the public meeting and in the staff follow-up meeting and deliver them to the City Staff within 

one week of the meeting date. 

 

City Planning Commission Meeting 

In the time between the Public Input Meeting and the City Planning Commission Meeting, Fentress will: 

 Make final refinements to the design based on public comment and Staff input. 

 Finalize the three-dimensional computer models for the selected schemes. 

 Direct the structural engineer to prepare conceptual structural diagrams and narratives of the designs. 

 Direct the cost estimator to prepare an opinion of probable costs for each scheme. 

 Prepare the presentation for the Planning Commission, including a powerpoint and material samples. 

 

This work will be reviewed with the City Staff prior to the City Planning Commission meeting, then presented to the 

Planning Commission. 

 

Lone Tree City Council Meeting 

In the time between the City Planning Commission Meeting and the City Council Meeting, Fentress will refine details 

of the designs based on the Planning Commission comments.  Then, the materials from the Planning Commission 

meeting will be prepared for the City Council Meeting.  All work will be reviewed with the City Staff prior to the City 

Council meeting. 

 

Deliverables 

The final package of deliverables for each scheme will be: 

 Overview plans and enlarged plans of the bridge. 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 26 of 154



 Elevations of each side of the bridge showing datum elevations relative to the Lincoln roadbed and adjacent 

approach ramps. 

 Sections showing the height and structural aspects of the design. 

 Three-dimensional views of the bridge, including pedestrian approaches, automobile views (from Lincoln), 

aerial views, and one night view, illustrating the lighting concept for the design. 

 Conceptual structural diagrams and narratives for each scheme. 

 Opinions of probable cost for each scheme. 

 

This information will be delivered to the City of Lone Tree in an 11 x 17 format, with three-dimensional views of each 

scheme provided on 24” x 36” laminated boards intended for display.  For an additional fee, Fentress Architects can 

prepare a physical model for use by the City to explain and promote the bridge design. 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 27 of 154



EXHIBIT B

1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 2 9 16 23 30

November 25

December 1-5

Collect Survey Information

Collect Design Concept Information

Refine Schedule

Prepare for Kick-Off Meeting

December 18

T
as

ks

Develop 2-3 concepts

Research materials and systems

Consult structural engineer for feasibility Dec 18-Jan 13

January 13

T
as

ks

Refine and prepare concepts for charette

Structural engineer dev detail of diagram

Initial review by cost estimator Jan 13-27

January 27

T
as

ks

Refine designs

Update structural concepts

Prepare presentation Jan 27-Feb 17

February 17

T
as

ks

Finalize designs

Finalize structural concepts

Prepare conceptual cost estimate

Prepare presentation Feb 17-Mar 10

March 10

T
as

ks

Integrate Planning Commission Comments

Refine presentation materials

Prepare final documents Mar 10-Mar 17

March 17

Final Package delivered to City March 24

February March

Fentress Architects | 20140080 |10 November 2014:  Revised 2 December 2014

Pedestrian Bridge Conceptual Design: Schedule
City of Lone Tree, Colorado

Lone Tree City Council Meeting

JanuaryActivities / Task

Information Gathering

Kick-Off Meeting

Progress Meeting

Project Award

Design Charette

Public Input Meeting

December

T
as

ks

City Planning Commission Presentation

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 28 of 154



EXHIBIT C

Discipline Consultant
Total per 

Consultant

1 Architectural Fentress Architects $116,560Not Included

2 Cost Estimating Rider Levitt Bucknall $22,500

3 Structural Buro Happold $9,350

4 Electrical/Lighting ME Engineers/Illume $7,700

Total $156,110

$15,611Reimbursable Estimate

City of Lone Tree, Colorado

Pedestrian Bridge Conceptual Design: Design Fees
Fentress Team | 20140080 | 12 November 2014  Revised 2 December 2014

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 29 of 154



10/2/2014     10:39 AM

Curtis Fentress $550

Finance $50 - $125

Administration $70 - $135

IT  / BIM $160 - $200

Marketing $85 - $150

Model $150 - $200

Intern Architect I $80 - $105

Intern Architect II $105 - $135

Intern Architect III $135 - $175

Architect I $130 - $165

Architect II $165 - $200

Architect III $200 - $275

Project Architect $150 - $250

Project Designer $175 - $350

Project Manager $200 - $425

Specification Writer $165 - $330

Interior Designer I $65 - $90

Interior Designer II $90 - $140

Interior Designer III $140 - $200

2014 Hourly Rate Schedule

Fentress Architects

I:\EXCEL\Jenni\Billing Rates\Billing Categories 2014 Standard Billing Rates.xlsx 1 of 112/16/14 City Council Packet Page 30 of 154

anne mcneely
EXHIBIT D



Illegal Aliens:   

 

The Consultant hereby certifies that at the time of executing this Agreement it does not knowingly 

employ or contract with an illegal alien who will perform work under this Agreement and that it will 

participate in either the E-Verify Program or Department Program as those terms are defined in C.R.S. 

§§ 8-17.5-101(3.7) and (3.3), respectively, (the “Programs”) in order to confirm the employment 

eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for employment to perform work under this 

Agreement.  

 

The Consultant shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform the work under 

this Agreement or enter into a contract with a subcontractor that fails to certify to the Consultant that 

the subcontractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work under 

this Agreement. 

 

The Consultant has confirmed the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for 

employment to perform work under the Agreement through participation in either the E-Verify 

Program or the Department Program. 

 

The Consultant is prohibited from using the Programs procedures to undertake pre-employment 

screening of job applicants while this Agreement is being performed. 

 

If the Consultant obtains actual knowledge that a subcontractor performing the work under this 

Agreement knowingly employs or contracts with an illegal alien, the Consultant shall: (a) notify the 

subcontractor and the Owner within three (3) days that the Consultant has actual knowledge that the 

subcontractor is knowingly employing or contracting with an illegal alien; and (b) terminate the 

subcontract with the subcontractor if within three (3) days of receiving the notice required by to C.R.S. 

§ 8-17.5-102(2)(III)(A), the subcontractor does not stop employing or contracting with the illegal 

alien; except that the Consultant shall not terminate the contract with the subcontractor if during such 

three (3) days the subcontractor provides information to establish that the subcontractor has not 

knowingly employed or contracted with an illegal alien. 

 

The Consultant shall comply with any reasonable request by the Colorado Department of Labor and 

Employment (the “Department”) made in the course of an investigation that the Department is 

undertaking pursuant to the authority established in C.R.S. § 8-17.5-102(5). 

     

Any violation of the provisions of this Section shall be deemed to be a material breach of this 

Agreement and the City may immediately terminate this Agreement for cause based on such violation.  

If this Agreement is so terminated, the Consultant shall be liable for actual and consequential damages 

to the Owner pursuant to C.R.S. § 8-17.5-102(3) and the City shall notify the office of the Secretary of 

State of such violation/termination. 

 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 31 of 154



 

 
STAFF REPORT      

 
 

TO:   Mayor Gunning and City Council 

FROM:  Neil Rutledge 

DATE:  December 10, 2014 

FOR:   December 16, 2014 City Council Study Session   

SUBJECT: FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING REGARDING CULTURAL ARTS CENTER 
SITE  

 
  
Summary  
This First Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding is between the City and 
Lincoln Commons South (LCS) and Rampart Range Metropolitan District (RRMD). It 
amends the agreement that resulted in the conveyance of the Arts Center site by LCS to 
the City in 2010.  
 
As part of the original MOU, LCS donated the Arts Center property to the City, but retained 
two pads to the east of the building, meant for future construction of restaurants. This 
Amendment provides for the conveyance of those two pad sites to the City, totaling 
approximately one-third of an acre. The City will have to pay the $12,000 per acre RRMD 
Systems Development Fee required by the District for the properties. Since the City will 
now own those properties, the License Agreements requiring the City to maintain the pad 
sites is no longer necessary and is terminated.  
 
Likewise, a Shared Access and Parking Easement Agreement was required as part of 
the donation of the land to the City. It was meant to accommodate access and parking for 
patrons of the restaurants, and to allow access to the LCS property just west of the Arts 
Center. This Agreement is also terminated by the Amendment.          
 
The Amendment to the MOU additionally calls for the City, at its sole cost and expense, 
to construct a new Main Drive Entrance on the eastern portion of the LTAC property, 
which would align with a new street, Arts Center Drive, at its intersection with Commons 
Street. This must be accomplished within one year of the conveyance of the pad sites to 
the City. This provision is a result of the City’s approval of a subdivisions plat with LCS, 
and negates that condition in the plat notes.  
 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 32 of 154



 

 
 
 
Cost 
The City is required to pay for the construction of the new driveway entrance to the Arts 
Center, as well as the RRMD Systems Development Fee. 
 
Suggested Motion 
I move to approve the First Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding Regarding 
Cultural Arts Center Site 
 
Background 
As part of development projects in Lincoln Commons east of the Arts Center, LCS 
proposed the construction of a new street to be called Arts Center Drive.  The alignment 
of this street was approved by the City with the acceptance of the recent subdivision plat. 
The new street originally was off-set from the existing entryway into the Arts Center, 
enough to cause an unacceptable intersection design.  

The City and LCS have agreed by this Amended MOU, that in return for the City paying 
to move the Arts Center entry drive to align with the new street, the City would be given 
the two development pads east of the Arts Center.  The result is the City will own and 
control all of the area in front of the Arts Center main entry. The existing shared access 
and parking easements, as well as license agreements, are no longer needed and are 
terminated. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 33 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 34 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 35 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 36 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 37 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 38 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 39 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 40 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 41 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 42 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 43 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 44 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 45 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 46 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 47 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 48 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 49 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 50 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 51 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 52 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 53 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 54 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 55 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 56 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 57 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 58 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 59 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 60 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 61 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 62 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 63 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 64 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 65 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 66 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 67 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 68 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 69 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 70 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 71 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 72 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 73 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 74 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 75 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 76 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 77 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 78 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 79 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 80 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 81 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 82 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 83 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 84 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 85 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 86 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 87 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 88 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 89 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 90 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 91 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 92 of 154



12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 93 of 154



 

 
STAFF REPORT 

      
 
TO:   Mayor Gunning and City Council 

FROM:  Kristin Baumgartner, Finance Director 

DATE:  December 9, 2014 

FOR:   December 16, 2014, City Council Meeting 

SUBJECT: Resolution, 14-23, ADOPTING THE 2015 GENERAL FUND, 
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS AND SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
BUDGETS 

 
Summary 
 
Attached is the 2015 City budget presented for adoption.  Prior to finalizing the budget, 
staff reviewed 2014 current projects and rolled over amounts appropriate for projects 
carrying over to 2015.  Revenues were also adjusted where appropriate based on actual 
information through October 31, 2014.  No other significant changes were made to the 
budget draft from the prior version presented at the public hearing.   
 
 
Cost 
 
N/A 
 
 
Suggested Motion or Recommended Action 
 
Move to approve Resolution 14-23, Adopting the 2015 General Fund, Debt Service Funds 
and Special Revenue Funds Budgets.   
 
 
 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 94 of 154



 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFIED RECORD 
 

OF 
 

PROCEEDINGS RELATING TO 
 

CITY OF LONE TREE 
 

DOUGLAS COUNTY, COLORADO 
 

AND THE BUDGET HEARING 
 

FOR FISCAL YEAR 
 

2015 
 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 95 of 154



 

 
2 

STATE OF COLORADO   ) 
) 

COUNTY OF DOUGLAS   )ss. 
) 

CITY OF LONE TREE   ) 
 
 

The City Council of the City of Lone Tree, Douglas County, Colorado, held a meeting at 
8527 Lone Tree Parkway, Lone Tree, Colorado, on December 16, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. 
 

The following members of the City Council were present: 
 
James Gunning, Mayor 
Jackie Millet, Mayor Pro Tem 
Harold Anderson, Council Member 
Kim Monson, Council Member 
Susan Squyer, Council Member  
 
Also in attendance were: 
 
Seth Hoffman, City Manager 
Neil Rutledge, City Attorney 
Kristin Baumgartner, CPA, Finance Director 
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 

 
Mayor Gunning stated that proper publication was made to conduct a public hearing on the 

2015 budget for the City of Lone Tree on November 18, 2014.  Mayor Gunning opened the public 
hearing on the proposed 2015 budget for the City of Lone Tree.  There was no public comment on 
the proposed budget for the City of Lone Tree, the public hearing was closed.  Final adoption of 
the budget occurred at the regularly scheduled Council meeting on December 16, 2014 at 7:00 
p.m.  
 
 Thereupon, ____________ introduced and moved the adoption of the following 
Resolution: 
 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 96 of 154



 

 
3 

CITY OF LONE TREE
R E S O L U T I O N   NO. 14-23 

 
 
A RESOLUTION SUMMARIZING REVENUES AND EXPENDITURE FOR THE GENERAL 
FUND, SPECIAL REVENUE FUND/RIDGEGATE, SPECIAL REVENUE FUND/CULTURAL 
AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, DEBT SERVICE FUND/ARTS AND CULTURAL 
FACILITIES, AND DEBT SERVICE FUND/PARK AND RECREATION IMPROVEMENTS, 
ADOPTING A BUDGET, AND APPROPRIATING SUMS OF MONEY TO THE GENERAL 
FUND, SPECIAL REVENUE FUND/RIDGEGATE, SPECIAL REVENUE FUND/CULTURAL 
AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, DEBT SERVICE FUND/ARTS AND CULTURAL 
FACILITIES, AND DEBT SERVICE FUND/PARK AND RECREATION IMPROVEMENTS 
IN THE AMOUNT AND FOR THE PURPOSES SET FORTH HEREIN FOR THE CITY OF 
LONE TREE, DOUGLAS COUNTY, COLORADO, FOR THE  2015 FISCAL YEAR ENDING 
ON THE LAST DAY OF DECEMBER, 2015. 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lone Tree has authorized its City Treasurer to 
prepare and submit a proposed budget to said governing body at the proper time; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed budget has been submitted to the City Council for its 
consideration; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Colorado statute, upon due and proper notice published on 
October 23, 2014 in the Douglas County News Press (legal notice #926274), a newspaper having 
general circulation within the boundaries of the City of Lone Tree, said proposed budget was 
available for inspection by the public at the Lone Tree Administrative Office and the City’s 
website, a public hearing was held on November 18, 2014, and interested electors were given the 
opportunity to file or register any objections to said proposed budget; and 
 

WHEREAS, whatever increases may have been made in the expenditures were added to 
the revenues so that the budget remains in balance, as required by law. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LONE TREE, DOUGLAS COUNTY, COLORADO: 
 

Section 1. 2015 Budget Revenues.  That the estimated revenues for the General Fund, 
Special Revenue Fund/RidgeGate, Special Revenue Fund/Cultural and Community Services, Debt 
Service Fund/Arts and Cultural Facilities, Debt Service Fund/Park and Recreation Improvements 
as more specifically set out in the budget attached hereto are accepted and approved. 
 

Section 2. 2015 Budget Expenditures.  That the estimated expenditures for the General 
Fund, Special Revenue Fund/RidgeGate, Special Revenue Fund/Cultural and Community 
Services, Debt Service Fund/Arts and Cultural Facilities and Debt Service Fund/Park and 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 97 of 154



 

 
4 

Recreation Improvements as more specifically set out in the budget attached hereto are accepted 
and approved. 
 

Section 3. Adoption of Budget for 2015.  That the budget as submitted and attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, and if amended, then as amended, is hereby 
approved and adopted as the budget of the City of Lone Tree for calendar year 2015. 
 

Section 4. Levy of General Property Taxes.  No mill levy will be certified by the City 
of Lone Tree for collection in 2015 and the attached budget does not anticipate general property 
tax revenues to balance the budget.   

 
Section 5. Amendment One Limits.  That, to the best of its knowledge and information, 

the Council states that the foregoing budget does not result in a violation of any provision of Article 
X, Section 20, of the Colorado Constitution. 
 

Section 6. Appropriations.  That the amount of $45,285,104 set forth as total 
expenditures in the budget attached hereto is hereby appropriated as follows from the General 
Fund, $35,169,234, the Special Revenue Fund/RidgeGate, $4,619,204 the Special Revenue 
Fund/Cultural and Community Services, $2,864,166 the Debt Service Fund/Arts and Cultural 
Facilities, $1,587,500 and the Debt Service Fund/Park and Recreation Improvements, $1,045,000 
for the budgeted expenditures.  
 

The foregoing Resolution was seconded by ____________________. 
 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of December, 2014 
 
 
 

_____________________________________                                  
James D. Gunning, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________________                                                                
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 98 of 154



 

 
5 

STATE OF COLORADO   ) 
) 

COUNTY OF DOUGLAS   )ss. 
) 

CITY OF LONE TREE   ) 
 
 

I, Jennifer Pettinger, City Clerk of the City of Lone Tree, Douglas County, Colorado, do 
hereby certify that the foregoing pages numbered 1 to 4, inclusive, constitute a true and correct 
copy of the record of proceedings of the City Council of the City of Lone Tree, adopted at a 
meeting of the Council held on December 16, 2014, at 7:00 p.m., at 8527 Lone Tree Parkway, 
Lone Tree, Colorado, as recorded in the official record of the proceedings of the City of Lone Tree, 
insofar as said proceedings relate to the budget hearing for fiscal year 2015; that said proceedings 
were duly had and taken; that the meeting was duly held; and that the persons were present at the 
meeting as therein shown.  Further, I hereby certify that the attached budget is a true and accurate 
copy of the 2015 budget of the City. 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed the official 
seal of the City of Lone Tree this 16th day of December, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 
( S E A L )     ________________________________  
      Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 99 of 154



  
  

2013 2014 2015
ACTUAL ESTIMATED ADOPTED

BEGINNING FUND BALANCES  13,701,060$         15,797,988$         18,940,829$         

REVENUE
   TAXES 25,333,948           26,150,000           26,449,900           
   FRANCHISE FEES 973,986                1,038,000             1,059,200             
   INTERGOVERNMENTAL 7,317,985             5,523,887             8,310,712             
   LICENSES, FEES AND CHARGES 1,743,385             1,911,000             1,286,500             
   FINES AND FORFEITURES 648,298                519,000                626,300                
   ARTS CENTER 1,369,871             1,649,128             1,834,730             
   OTHER 1,760,167             551,139                1,411,086             

      Total revenue 39,147,640           37,342,154           40,978,428           

TRANSFERS IN
   General Fund 1,024,170             999,758                632,823                
   Special Revenue Fund - RidgeGate -                            -                            -                            
   Special Revenue Fund - Arts Center 717,851                924,496                1,029,436             

        Total transfers in 1,742,021             1,924,254             1,662,259             

      Total funds available 54,590,721           55,064,396           61,581,516           

EXPENDITURES
   GENERAL GOVERNMENT 4,775,878             4,931,773             5,173,452             
   MUNICIPAL COURT 210,388                213,170                229,966                
   COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 1,222,385             1,047,360             913,242                
   POLICE DEPARTMENT 6,142,980             6,786,230             7,391,721             
   PUBLIC WORKS 3,962,754             4,386,750             4,430,000             
   ARTS AND CULTURAL 2,143,423             2,871,124             3,022,666             
   PARKS AND RECREATION 18,034                  5,000                    165,000                
   CAPITAL OUTLAY 16,206,114           11,523,087           19,791,798           
   DEBT SERVICE 2,368,756             2,434,819             2,505,000             

      Total expenditures 37,050,712           34,199,314           43,622,845           

TRANSFERS OUT
   General Fund 717,851                924,496                1,029,436             
   Special Revenue Fund - RidgeGate 887,569                824,758                505,323                
   Debt Service Fund - Arts and Cultural Facilities 136,601                175,000                127,500                

        Total transfers out 1,742,021             1,924,254             1,662,259             

        Total appropriation 38,792,733           36,123,568           45,285,104           

ENDING FUND BALANCES 15,797,988$         18,940,829$         16,296,413$         

CITY OF LONE TREE
SUMMARY

FORECASTED 2015 BUDGET AS ADOPTED
WITH 2013 ACTUALS AND 2014 ESTIMATED

12/10/201412/16/14 City Council Packet Page 100 of 154



  
  

2013 2014 2015
ACTUAL ESTIMATED ADOPTED

FUNDS RESERVED FOR:
   Emergency reserves (TABOR) 795,975                793,000                835,000                
   Emergency maintenance and repair  52,601                  52,601                  52,601                  
   Prepaid items 295,760                300,000                300,000                
   Emergency disaster management 89,730                  99,273                  108,077                
   Capital projects - County - transportation 414,198                -                            -                            
   Bond proceeds - Park and Rec Improvements 934,020                934,020                794,020                
   Park fee in lieu of land 46,125                  74,194                  74,194                  
   Conservation Trust Fund 115,118                177,118                240,118                
   Brick fence replacement reserve 986,200                986,200                986,200                
   Lone Tree Link Partnership funds -                            283,305                -                            
   Kaiser Walk/Wheel grant -                            -                            -                            
   Debt Service - Arts and Cultural Facilities 568,947                649,141                766,141                
   Debt Service - Park and Recreation Improvements 682,980                776,367                868,767                
FUNDS DESIGNATED FOR:  
   Working reserve 2,805,000             3,848,000             4,577,000             
   Capital reserve - capital projects 4,412,000             7,600,000             6,535,000             
   Capital reserve - vehicles replacement -                            92,000                  133,333                
   Subsequent year's expenditures 2,561,001             2,252,417             -                            
UNDESIGNATED AND UNRESERVED FUNDS 1,038,333 23,193 25,962

15,797,988$         18,940,829$         16,296,413$         

CITY OF LONE TREE
SUMMARY

FORECASTED 2015 BUDGET AS ADOPTED
WITH 2013 ACTUALS AND 2014 ESTIMATED

12/10/201412/16/14 City Council Packet Page 101 of 154



  
REVENUE DETAIL

2013 2014 2015
ACTUAL ESTIMATED ADOPTED

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 12,927,111$         14,447,335$         17,462,720$         

REVENUE

TAXES
   Sales tax 17,533,355           18,130,000           18,577,000           
   Use tax-retail 282,421                270,000                275,400                
   Use tax - building materials 143,259                191,000                195,000                
   Lodging tax 616,644                720,000                734,000                
   Admissions tax 357,294                514,000                374,000                

TOTAL TAXES 18,932,973           19,825,000           20,155,400           

FRANCHISE FEES
   Electric and gas 674,777                710,000                725,000                
   Cable TV 184,726                199,000                202,000                

TOTAL FRANCHISE FEES 859,503                909,000                927,000                

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
   Highway Users Tax (HUTF) 229,850                222,137                206,106                
   Conservation Trust Fund (Lottery) 62,006                  62,000                  63,000                  
   Cigarette tax 202,452                193,000                193,000                
   County Road & Bridge shareback 978,642                1,085,000             1,169,460             
   Douglas County Shareback - transportation 2,274,156             2,400,000             2,435,000             
   Motor vehicle registration fees 39,404                  44,000                  45,000                  
   Regional improvements contribution - RRMDs 91,518                  104,400                126,258                
   Reimbursable costs 3,332,376             1,127,400             3,863,600             
   Grants 23,128                  118,000                18,000                  

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL 7,233,532             5,355,937             8,119,424             

WITH 2013 ACTUALS AND 2014 ESTIMATED

CITY OF LONE TREE
GENERAL FUND

FORECASTED 2015 BUDGET AS ADOPTED

12/10/201412/16/14 City Council Packet Page 102 of 154



  
  

REVENUE DETAIL - Continued

2013 2014 2015
ACTUAL ESTIMATED ADOPTED

REVENUE (Continued)  
LICENSES, FEES AND CHARGES  
   Sales and use tax and business license fees 22,645                  23,500                  23,500                  
   Liquor license fees 22,100                  12,000                  13,000                  
   Building permit fees 291,228                315,000                322,000                
   Planning and zoning fees 17,580                  22,000                  25,000                  
   Engineering fees 64,305                  33,000                  35,000                  
   Other 39,300                  37,000                  38,000                  

TOTAL LICENSE, FEES AND CHARGES 457,158                442,500                456,500                

FINES AND FORFEITURES
   Court fees 70,038                  72,000                  73,400                  
   Vehicle and other code violation fines 534,619                402,000                507,000                
   Victims assistance surcharge 43,641                  45,000                  45,900                  

TOTAL FINES AND FORFEITURES 648,298                519,000                626,300                

OTHER
   Net investment income 16,744                  11,150                  13,970                  
   Miscellaneous 1,443,809             247,000                1,141,000             
   Police Department fees and other charges 22,958                  30,000                  25,000                  
   Tenant rental income 249,904                223,000                218,000                

OTHER 1,733,415             511,150                1,397,970             

        Total revenue 29,864,879           27,562,587           31,682,594           

TRANSFERS IN
   Special Revenue Fund - RidgeGate 887,569                824,758                505,323                
   Debt Service Fund - Arts and Cultural Facilities 136,601                175,000                127,500                

        Total transfers in 1,024,170             999,758                632,823                

        Total funds available 43,816,160$         43,009,680$         49,778,137$         

WITH 2013 ACTUALS AND 2014 ESTIMATED

CITY OF LONE TREE
GENERAL FUND

FORECASTED 2015 BUDGET AS ADOPTED

12/10/201412/16/14 City Council Packet Page 103 of 154



  
  

EXPENDITURE DETAIL

2013 2014 2015
ACTUAL ESTIMATED ADOPTED

EXPENDITURES  

GENERAL GOVERNMENT  
    City Council expenditures 27,482$                33,000$                48,000$                
    City Council stipend 56,757                  59,500                  61,300                  
    Administrative Services - salaries and benefits 582,688                544,359                568,081                
    City Clerk 15,056                  29,575                  40,000                  
    Human Resources 50,241                  88,300                  81,270                  
    Information Technology 265,757                382,155                403,950                
    Municipal office building 344,971                328,900                409,050                
    Civic Center maintenance & utilities 56,105                  56,300                  74,700                  
    LTAC maintenance & utilities 205,537                199,360                301,910                
    Restroom maintenance 5,433                    7,000                    8,500                    
    Fountain maintenance -                            -                            23,500                  
    Insurance 343,212                305,000                320,250                
    Finance - salaries and benefits 285,989                360,999                372,510                
    Finance - consulting 256,287                12,000                  -                            
    Audit 13,658                  27,935                  25,000                  
    City Manager's Office - salaries and benefits 571,658                712,924                631,317                
    Dues and memberships 84,038                  99,666                  99,811                  
    Legal - general 539,313                633,700                480,000                
    Legal - special 216,623                20,000                  100,000                
    Consulting 23,238                  20,000                  80,000                  
    Community support 46,808                  51,200                  53,000                  
    Community garden -                            -                            3,000                    
    Youth initiatives 19,800                  19,800                  19,800                  
    Housing Partnership 35,000                  35,000                  35,000                  
    Community education programs 694                       1,025                    1,000                    
    Citizen survey -                            -                            27,800                  
    Communications and newsletter 61,810                  65,000                  68,000                  
    Economic development 144,952                268,500                276,000                
    Miscellaneous 13,641                  48,801                  52,251                  

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT 4,266,750             4,410,000             4,665,000             

CITY OF LONE TREE
GENERAL FUND

FORECASTED 2015 BUDGET AS ADOPTED
WITH 2013 ACTUALS AND 2014 ESTIMATED

12/10/201412/16/14 City Council Packet Page 104 of 154



  
  

EXPENDITURE DETAIL - Continued

2013 2014 2015
ACTUAL ESTIMATED ADOPTED

EXPENDITURES (Continued)
MUNICIPAL COURT
    Municipal Judge 23,986                  23,000                  30,000                  
    Legal 36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  
    Administration 133,677                136,170                140,966                
    Office supplies and software 3,932                    3,000                    3,000                    
    Victims assistance 12,792                  15,000                  20,000                  

TOTAL MUNICIPAL COURT 210,388                213,170                229,966                

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
    Salaries and benefits 572,445                476,642                545,440                
    Contract services -                            3,878                    1,500                    
    Field supplies 3,228                    4,200                    3,625                    
    Planning Commission 1,799                    2,500                    2,500                    
    Document scanning 6,735                    6,500                    6,500                    
    Plan review and other inspections 32,359                  25,000                  25,000                  
    Elevator inspections 17,982                  41,960                  43,560                  
    Engineering 56,480                  28,000                  30,000                  
    Sustainability program 362                       500                       3,000                    
    ROW mowing -                            -                            7,100                    
    Miscellaneous 7,563                    10,356                  12,048                  

TOTAL COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 698,952                599,536                680,273                

POLICE DEPARTMENT
    Salaries and benefits 3,848,765             4,159,498             4,341,307             
    Office and administration 175,052                136,676                144,627                
    Uniforms and equipment 38,115                  47,852                  48,972                  
    Vehicles and equipment 379,700                447,324                410,824                
    General equipment 12,740                  20,669                  103,702                
    Dispatch 366,154                389,268                422,590                
    Training 76,177                  86,897                  97,553                  
    Community outreach and miscellaneous 91,314                  75,316                  99,484                  

TOTAL POLICE DEPARTMENT 4,988,017             5,363,501             5,669,059             

 

WITH 2013 ACTUALS AND 2014 ESTIMATED

CITY OF LONE TREE
GENERAL FUND

FORECASTED 2015 BUDGET AS ADOPTED

12/10/201412/16/14 City Council Packet Page 105 of 154



  
  

EXPENDITURE DETAIL - Continued

2013 2014 2015
ACTUAL ESTIMATED ADOPTED

EXPENDITURES (Continued)
PUBLIC WORKS
    Public Works Department 485,760                520,000                520,000                
    Street lighting 380,078                385,000                390,000                
    Street maintenance 565,269                650,000                650,000                
    Drainage maintenance 5,414                    90,000                  60,000                  
    Street  & sidewalk sweeping 35,702                  50,000                  50,000                  
    Traffic signal energy cost and maintenance 123,382                130,000                135,000                
    Signal timing -                            -                            19,000                  
    Snow removal 968,042                1,044,500             832,000                
    Landscaping maintenance 137,807                83,000                  50,000                  
    Trash and recycling service 533,938                510,000                512,000                
    Household hazardous waste program 3,067                    6,000                    6,500                    
    Engineering 237,440                240,000                275,000                
    Fence maintenance 7                           -                            80,000                  
    Geographic Information System (GIS) 142,785                140,000                140,000                
    Website mapper 5,000                    5,000                    -                            
    Materials and equipment 355                       14,000                  14,000                  
    EPA Phase 2 Drainage 54,260                  65,000                  110,000                
    Noxious weeds control 9,733                    22,000                  20,000                  
    Signage and striping 52,383                  130,000                120,000                
    Accident repairs 35,917                  20,000                  20,000                  
    Public Works Facility operations and equipment 26,216                  45,000                  45,000                  
    Software and support 11,954                  16,000                  17,000                  
    Street amenities 1,587                    5,000                    5,000                    
    Mutt mitts contract 10,727                  10,500                  10,500                  
    Habitat control -                            -                            -                            
    Holiday lighting and decorations 17,473                  20,000                  20,000                  
    Miscellaneous -                            3,000                    3,000                    

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 3,844,296             4,204,000             4,104,000             

ARTS AND CULTURAL
    Arts Center repairs and maintenance -                            122,500                106,000                
    Arts Center capital improvements 55,701                  175,000                52,500                                                                        

TOTAL ARTS AND CULTURAL 55,701                  297,500                158,500                

PARKS AND RECREATION
    Recreational activities and support 10,696                  -                            -                            
    Joint recreational projects with South Suburban 7,337                    5,000                    65,000                  
    Park and recreation capital improvements -                            -                            100,000                

TOTAL PARKS AND RECREATION 18,034                  5,000                    165,000                

FORECASTED 2015 BUDGET AS ADOPTED
WITH 2013 ACTUALS AND 2014 ESTIMATED

CITY OF LONE TREE
GENERAL FUND

12/10/201412/16/14 City Council Packet Page 106 of 154



EXPENDITURE DETAIL - Continued

2013 2014 2015
ACTUAL ESTIMATED ADOPTED

EXPENDITURES (Continued)

CAPITAL OUTLAY

    Software packages 59,824                  76,610                  15,000                  
    CarteGraph/ArcServer Upgrade -                            -                            50,000                  
    Website redesign -                          -                           100,000               
    Overlay/reconstruction projects 1,555,338             1,215,000             1,200,000             
    Traffic signalization 65,210                  70,000                  145,000                
    Traffic and other improvements - joint projects 4,140                    -                            -                            
    Pedestrian lights 234,468                206,000                -                            
    Monumentation and signage 7,302                    80,000                  250,000                
    City Office building 1,535,258             19,000                  25,500                  
    City Office building - capital leases 951,972                1,015,000             1,290,000             
    City Office - letter of credit fees/remarketing fees 48,428                  31,000                  -                            
    Civic Center capital improvements 59,153                  69,000                  25,000                  
    Concrete panel replacement 344,808                472,000                250,000                
    Entertainment District improvements 103,674                20,000                  730,000                
    Park Meadows Dr. traffic improvements 81,112                  -                            -                            
    Park Meadows Drive median improvements 3,459                    4,000                    -                            
    Park Meadows Dr. regional pond upgrade -                            -                            -                            
    Landscaping PM Center Dr/County Line 4,542                    32,500                  -                            
    Transportation study -                            -                            50,000                  
    Landscape improvements 10,779                  57,000                  -                            
    County Line improvements 40,000                  -                            -                            
    Yosemite landscaped medians -                            1,000                    10,000                  
    C-470 Coalition - Douglas County 100,000                -                            100,000                
    Storm sewer improvements 95,685                  40,000                  135,000                
    Park Meadows Reconstruct (W of Acres Green) 1,698,888             -                            -                            
    Park Meadows Medians (W of Acres Green) -                            10,000                  -                            
    Parkway Drive crossing Willow Creek -                            -                            50,000                  
    Light Rail Extension -                            -                            -                            
    Lone Tree Link -                            250,000                500,000                
    Walk and Wheel Study -                            90,000                  -                            
    Brick fence 13,800                  -                            -                            

CITY OF LONE TREE
GENERAL FUND

FORECASTED 2015 BUDGET AS ADOPTED
WITH 2013 ACTUALS AND 2014 ESTIMATED

12/10/201412/16/14 City Council Packet Page 107 of 154



EXPENDITURE DETAIL - Continued

2013 2014 2015
ACTUAL ESTIMATED ADOPTED

EXPENDITURES (Continued)

CAPITAL OUTLAY (Continued)

    Lincoln Pedestrian Bridge -                            -                            4,000,000             
    Parkway Drive Reconstruction -                            -                            1,200,000             
    Yosemite Turn Lane (Maximus to PMD) -                            -                            850,000                
    Lincoln/I-25 Ramp Improvements -                            -                            430,000                
    County Line/PMCD Intersection Improvements -                            -                            450,000                
    LTAC Road Construction -                            -                            133,000                
    LTAC Pad enhancements -                            -                            25,000                  
    Town Ridge Drive Construction -                            -                            300,000                
    Public art project -                            14,500                  210,500                
    Police Department substation -                            -                            60,000                  
    Schweiger Ranch preservation -                            75,000                  75,000                  
    Retail retention agreement 75,000                  75,000                  75,000                  
    Service provider shareback agreement -                            10,000                  10,000                  
    Annexation shareback agreement 732                       27,188                  30,000                  
    County public improvements shareback 2,200,000             -                            -                            
    Reimbursement of sales taxes to PMBID 5,090,889             5,360,000             5,479,000             
    Reimbursement property taxes-PMBID for PMMD 184,379                209,962                215,000                

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 14,568,838           9,529,760             18,468,000           

        Total expenditures 28,650,974           24,622,465           34,139,798           

TRANSFERS OUT
   Special Revenue Fund - Arts Center 717,851                924,496                1,029,436             
   Special Revenue Fund - RidgeGate -                            -                            -                            

        Total transfers out 717,851                924,496                1,029,436             

        Total appropriation 29,368,825           25,546,961           35,169,234           

ENDING FUND BALANCE 14,447,335$         17,462,720$         14,608,904$         

CITY OF LONE TREE
GENERAL FUND

FORECASTED 2015 BUDGET AS ADOPTED
WITH 2013 ACTUALS AND 2014 ESTIMATED

12/10/201412/16/14 City Council Packet Page 108 of 154



CITY OF LONE TREE
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - RIDGEGATE

FORECASTED 2015 BUDGET AS ADOPTED
WITH 2013 ACTUALS AND 2014 ESTIMATED

2013 2014 2015
ACTUAL ESTIMATED ADOPTED

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE (273,873)$          98,726$          52,601$               

REVENUE  
    Sales tax 1,396,339          2,039,000       1,895,000            
    Use tax-retail 384,846             410,000          420,000               
    Use tax - building materials 1,761,686          904,000          944,000               
    Lodging tax 149,586             190,000          195,000               
    Franchise fees - electric and gas 110,007             125,000          128,000               
    Franchise fees - cable 4,476                 4,000              4,200                   
    Highway Users Tax (HUTF) 84,453               92,950            116,288               
    Building permit fees 1,140,934          1,381,000       717,000               
    Planning and zoning fees 18,359               12,500            13,000                 
    Engineering fees 126,934             75,000            100,000               
    Schweiger Ranch grants and contributions -                         75,000            75,000                 
    Net investment income 2,256                 1,520              1,716                   
    Developer reimbursement -                         -                      -                           
    Reimbursable costs -                         -                      -                           
    Other 23,552               37,069            10,000                 

            Total revenue 5,203,428          5,347,039       4,619,204            

TRANSFERS IN
   General Fund -                         -                      -                           

        Total transfers in -                         -                      -                           
 
            Total funds available 4,929,555$        5,445,765$     4,671,805$          

12/10/2014
12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 109 of 154



CITY OF LONE TREE
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - RIDGEGATE

FORECASTED 2015 BUDGET AS ADOPTED
WITH 2013 ACTUALS AND 2014 ESTIMATED

2013 2014 2015
ACTUAL ESTIMATED ADOPTED

EXPENDITURES
    City Administration - salaries and benefits 167,699$           193,475$        207,401$             
    Legal 39,298               6,300              10,000                 
    Finance - consultant 50,709               -                      -                           
    Administration and overhead costs 157,284             200,000          200,000               
    Insurance 89,340               81,000            85,050                 
    Audit 4,799                 5,000              5,000                   
    Engineering 323,291             250,000          250,000               
    Community Development 200,142             197,824          232,970               
    Consulting -                         35,000            -                           
    Police Department 1,154,963          1,422,729       1,722,662            
    Street lighting 5,137                 5,500              6,000                   
    Snow removal 113,322             177,250          70,000                 
    Schweiger Ranch Preservation -                         75,000            75,000                 
    Retail shareback 353,512             556,041          567,162               
    Service provider shareback -                         200,000          -                           
    Developer revenue shareback 1,283,765          1,162,286       681,636               
    Reimbursement related to annexation agreement -                         -                  -                           
    Miscellaneous -                         1,000              1,000                   

          Total expenditures 3,943,260          4,568,406       4,113,881            

TRANSFERS OUT
   General Fund 887,569             824,758          505,323               

        Total transfers out 887,569             824,758          505,323               

      Total appropriation 4,830,829          5,393,164       4,619,204            

ENDING FUND BALANCE 98,726$             52,601$          52,601$               

12/10/2014
12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 110 of 154



CITY OF LONE TREE
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - CULTURAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICES FUND

FORECASTED 2015 BUDGET AS ADOPTED
WITH 2013 ACTUALS AND 2014 ESTIMATED

2013 2014 2015
ACTUAL ESTIMATED ADOPTED

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE -$                           -$                           -$                           

REVENUE  
LONE TREE ARTS CENTER
  Operating
    Ticket sales 684,923                 956,997                 1,060,180              
    Handling fees 93,296                   93,500                   93,000                   
    Rental fees 108,951                 108,900                 100,900                 
    Labor fees 78,508                   65,943                   59,500                   
    Concessions and catering 86,826                   87,000                   91,000                   
    Miscellaneous 4,128                     5,000                     3,000                     
    Education 20,546                   -                             -                             

  Non-Operating
    Individual, corporate and foundation contributions 137,925                 151,500                 210,000                 
    Government grants 110,625                 137,288                 197,150                 
    Fundraising -                             -                             -                             

TOTAL LONE TREE ARTS CENTER 1,325,728              1,606,128              1,814,730              

OTHER
  Annual Events 26,820                   34,000                   11,000                   

  Arts and cultural events 17,323                   9,000                     9,000                     

TOTAL OTHER 44,143                   43,000                   20,000                   

            Total revenue 1,369,871              1,649,128              1,834,730              

TRANSFERS IN
   General Fund - Lone Tree Arts Center 425,340                 650,424                 674,804                 
   General Fund - Annual events 169,011                 191,000                 270,732                 
   General Fund - Arts and cultural events 118,188                 68,072                   68,900                   
   General Fund - Park and recreation 5,312                     15,000                   15,000                   

        Total transfers in 717,851                 924,496                 1,029,436              
 
            Total funds available 2,087,722$            2,573,624$            2,864,166$            

12/10/2014
12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 111 of 154



CITY OF LONE TREE
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - CULTURAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICES FUND

FORECASTED 2015 BUDGET AS ADOPTED
WITH 2013 ACTUALS AND 2014 ESTIMATED

2013 2014 2015
ACTUAL ESTIMATED ADOPTED

EXPENDITURES
LONE TREE ARTS CENTER
    Administration   119,419                 158,860                 160,217                 
    Programming 1,170,687              1,617,747              1,682,014              
    Marketing 359,214                 407,802                 432,308                 
    Education 42,666                   5,772                     -                             
    Miscellaneous 15,889                   19,741                   21,000                   
    Development 43,193                   46,630                   153,995                 
    Contingency -                             -                             40,000                   

TOTAL LONE TREE ARTS CENTER 1,751,068              2,256,552              2,489,534              

OTHER
    Annual events 195,831                 225,000                 281,732                 
    Arts and cultural events 135,511                 77,072                   77,900                   
    Recreational activities and support 5,312                     15,000                   15,000                   

TOTAL OTHER 336,654                 317,072                 374,632                 

          Total expenditures 2,087,722              2,573,624              2,864,166              

TRANSFERS OUT

        Total transfers out -                             -                             -                             

        Total appropriation 2,087,722              2,573,624              2,864,166              

ENDING FUND BALANCE -$                       -$                           -$                           

12/10/2014
12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 112 of 154



CITY OF LONE TREE
DEBT SERVICE FUND - ARTS AND CULTURAL FACILITIES

FORECASTED 2015 BUDGET AS ADOPTED
WITH 2013 ACTUALS AND 2014 ESTIMATED

2013 2014 2015
ACTUAL ESTIMATED ADOPTED

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 450,224$         568,947$         649,141$           

REVENUE  
    Sales tax 1,577,027        1,624,000        1,658,000          
    Use tax - retail 29,804            25,000            25,500              
    Use tax - building materials 17,897            20,000            20,400              
    Net investment income 352                600                600                  

            Total revenue 1,625,080        1,669,600        1,704,500          

TRANSFERS IN
   General Fund -                    -                    -                      

        Total transfers in -                    -                    -                      
 
            Total funds available 2,075,304        2,238,547        2,353,641          

EXPENDITURES
    Bond interest 524,556          499,206          471,756            
    Bond principal 845,000          915,000          985,000            
    Paying agent fees 200                200                200                  
    Contingency -                    -                    3,044                 
          Total expenditures 1,369,756        1,414,406        1,460,000          

TRANSFERS OUT
   General Fund 136,601          175,000          127,500            

        Total transfers out 136,601          175,000          127,500            

        Total appropriation 1,506,357        1,589,406        1,587,500          

ENDING FUND BALANCE 568,947$         649,141$         766,141$           

 

12/10/2014
12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 113 of 154



CITY OF LONE TREE
DEBT SERVICE FUND - PARK AND RECREATION IMPROVEMENTS

FORECASTED 2015 BUDGET AS ADOPTED
WITH 2013 ACTUALS AND 2014 ESTIMATED

2013 2014 2015
ACTUAL ESTIMATED ADOPTED

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 597,598$         682,980$         776,367$          

REVENUE  
    Sales tax 1,051,984        1,082,000        1,105,000         
    Use tax - retail 19,881            17,000            17,300             
    Use tax - building materials 11,925            14,000            14,300             
    Net investment income 592                800                800                  

            Total revenue 1,084,382        1,113,800        1,137,400         

TRANSFERS IN
   General Fund -                    -                    -                      

        Total transfers in -                    -                    -                      
 
            Total funds available 1,681,980        1,796,780        1,913,767         

EXPENDITURES
    Bond interest 443,800          420,213          394,713            
    Bond principal 555,000          600,000          645,000            
    Paying agent fees 200                200                200                  
    Contingency -                    -                    5,087                
          Total expenditures 999,000          1,020,413        1,045,000         

TRANSFERS OUT

        Total transfers out -                    -                    -                      

        Total appropriation 999,000          1,020,413        1,045,000         

ENDING FUND BALANCE 682,980$         776,367$         868,767$          

12/10/2014
12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 114 of 154



 

 
STAFF REPORT 

      
 
TO:   Mayor Gunning and City Council 

FROM:  Kristin Baumgartner, Finance Director 

DATE:  December 9, 2014 

FOR:   December 16, 2014, City Council Meeting 

SUBJECT: Public Hearing:  Resolution 14-24, ADOPTING A 
SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET AND APPROPRIATION FOR 
FY2014 DUE TO UNANTICIPATED REVENUES OR 
REVENUES NOT ASSURED AT THE TIME OF ADOPTION 
OF THE BUDGET 

 
Summary 
 
Based on unanticipated revenues in the Special Revenue Fund – RidgeGate related to 
sales taxes generated from new vendors as well as construction related revenues, the 
2014 budget for this funds needs to be amended.  Pursuant to the current annexation 
agreement, after expenditures are netted against revenues, the remaining amount is 
split between the developer and the City (60% to the developer and 40% to the City).  
Since the revenues are anticipated to come in higher than originally budgeted, the 
corresponding shareback is anticipated to be higher than originally budgeted, therefore 
requiring the attached budget amendment for 2014.   
 
 
Cost 
 
N/A 
 
 
Suggested Motion or Recommended Action 
 
I move to approve Resolution 14-24, ADOPTING A SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET AND 
APPROPRIATION FOR FY2014 DUE TO UNANTICIPATED REVENUES OR 
REVENUES NOT ASSURED AT THE TIME OF ADOPTION OF THE BUDGET.   
 
 
 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 115 of 154



CITY OF LONE TREE 
RESOLUTION NO. 14-24 

 
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET AND 

APPROPRIATION FOR FY2014 DUE TO UNANTICIPATED REVENUES OR 
REVENUES NOT ASSURED AT THE TIME OF ADOPTION OF THE BUDGET 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Lone Tree anticipated total funds available from the 
Special Revenue Fund – RidgeGate of $5,054,326 for FY2014, which were reflected in the 
City’s FY2014 budget; and  

 
 WHEREAS, the City budgeted and appropriated to the Special Revenue Fund – 
RidgeGate total expenditures requiring appropriations of $5,001,725 for FY2014, leaving 
additional funds unappropriated and not made available for expenditure; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City  currently anticipates  total funds available from the Special 

Revenue Fund – RidgeGate amounting to $5,576,991 for FY2014, which additional funds 
were not reflected in the City’s FY2014 budget; and   

 
WHEREAS, the additional funds available and the unappropriated and unspent 

funds were unanticipated revenue or revenue not assured at the time of adoption of the City 
budget for FY2014, as they were not expected to be available and expended in FY2014, 
and such availability and possible expenditure could not be foreseen at the time of the 
adoption of the budget for FY2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to enact a supplemental budget and appropriation 

increasing its Special Revenue Fund – RidgeGate total expenditures requiring 
appropriation to $5,524,390 for FY2014; furthermore   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF LONE TREE, COLORADO: 
 
 1. All of the foregoing paragraphs are incorporated by reference as though 
fully set forth herein. 
 
 2. Pursuant to Section 29-1-109, C.R.S., the City determines that there have 
been unanticipated revenues or revenues not assured at the time of the adoption of the 
FY2014 budget allocated to the Special Revenue Fund – RidgeGate, due to the reasons set 
forth above. 
 
 3. The City hereby enacts a supplemental budget and appropriation, attached 
to this Resolution as Exhibit A, authorizing total expenditures of $5,524,390 from the 
Special Revenue Fund – RidgeGate for FY2014. 
 
 4. The City hereby authorizes and ratifies such expenditures for FY2014. 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 116 of 154



 2

 
 5. The City has complied with the notice provisions of Section 29-1-106, 
C.R.S.  
 
 6. The City Clerk is hereby directed to file a certified copy of this Resolution 
with the Division of Local Government in the Department of Local Affairs. 
 
 

 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED THIS 16th DAY OF DECEMBER, 2014. 
 

 
      CITY OF LONE TREE 
 
 
      By:        
        James D. Gunning, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
       (SEAL) 
 
          
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 
 

 
 
 
 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 117 of 154



CITY OF LONE TREE
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - RIDGEGATE

2014 ORIGINAL BUDGET AND 2014 AMENDED BUDGET

2014 2014
BUDGET AMENDED

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 52,601$             98,726$             

REVENUE
    Sales tax 1,818,000          2,139,000          
    Use tax-retail 687,000             450,000             
    Use tax - building materials 965,000             904,000             
    Lodging tax 158,100             190,000             
    Franchise fees - electric and gas 110,250             125,000             
    Franchise fees - cable 4,700                 4,000                 
    Highway Users Tax (HUTF) 84,175               84,175               
    Building permit fees 963,000             1,381,000          
    Planning and zoning fees 20,000               12,500               
    Engineering fees 110,000             75,000               
    Schweiger Ranch grants and contributions 75,000               75,000               
    Net investment income 1,500                 1,520                 
    Other 5,000                 37,070               

            Total revenue 5,001,725          5,478,265          

TRANSFERS IN
   General Fund -                         -                         

        Total transfers in -                         -                         
 
            Total funds available 5,054,326$        5,576,991$        

EXHIBIT A

"Draft - Subject to Revision" 12/2/2014
12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 118 of 154



CITY OF LONE TREE
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - RIDGEGATE

2014 ORIGINAL BUDGET AND 2014 AMENDED BUDGET
EXHIBIT A

2014 2014
BUDGET AMENDED

EXPENDITURES
    City Administration - salaries and benefits 203,554$           203,554             
    Legal 20,000               20,000               
    Administration and overhead costs 220,000             220,000             
    Insurance 76,900               81,000               
    Audit 5,000                 5,000                 
    Engineering 300,000             300,000             
    Community Development 208,024             208,024             
    Consulting 35,000               35,000               
    Police Department 1,556,317          1,422,729          
    Street lighting 5,000                 5,500                 
    Snow removal 125,000             177,250             
    Schweiger Ranch Preservation 75,000               75,000               
    Retail shareback 480,675             556,041             
    Service provider shareback 200,000             200,000             
    Developer revenue shareback 865,870             1,171,580          
    Contingency 5,000                 12,758               

          Total expenditures 4,381,340          4,693,436          

TRANSFERS OUT
   General Fund 620,385             830,954             

        Total transfers out 620,385             830,954             

      Total appropriation 5,001,725          5,524,390          

ENDING FUND BALANCE 52,601$             52,601$             

"Draft - Subject to Revision" 12/2/2014
12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 119 of 154



CITY OF LONE TREE
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - RIDGEGATE

2014 ORIGINAL BUDGET AND 2014 AMENDED BUDGET

2014 2014
BUDGET AMENDED

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 52,601$             98,726$             

REVENUE
    Sales tax 1,818,000          2,139,000          
    Use tax-retail 687,000             450,000             
    Use tax - building materials 965,000             904,000             
    Lodging tax 158,100             190,000             
    Franchise fees - electric and gas 110,250             125,000             
    Franchise fees - cable 4,700                 4,000                 
    Highway Users Tax (HUTF) 84,175               84,175               
    Building permit fees 963,000             1,381,000          
    Planning and zoning fees 20,000               12,500               
    Engineering fees 110,000             75,000               
    Schweiger Ranch grants and contributions 75,000               75,000               
    Net investment income 1,500                 1,520                 
    Other 5,000                 37,070               

            Total revenue 5,001,725          5,478,265          

TRANSFERS IN
   General Fund -                         -                         

        Total transfers in -                         -                         
 
            Total funds available 5,054,326$        5,576,991$        

EXHIBIT A

12/9/2014
12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 120 of 154



CITY OF LONE TREE
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - RIDGEGATE

2014 ORIGINAL BUDGET AND 2014 AMENDED BUDGET
EXHIBIT A

2014 2014
BUDGET AMENDED

EXPENDITURES
    City Administration - salaries and benefits 203,554$           203,554             
    Legal 20,000               20,000               
    Administration and overhead costs 220,000             220,000             
    Insurance 76,900               81,000               
    Audit 5,000                 5,000                 
    Engineering 300,000             300,000             
    Community Development 208,024             208,024             
    Consulting 35,000               35,000               
    Police Department 1,556,317          1,422,729          
    Street lighting 5,000                 5,500                 
    Snow removal 125,000             177,250             
    Schweiger Ranch Preservation 75,000               75,000               
    Retail shareback 480,675             556,041             
    Service provider shareback 200,000             200,000             
    Developer revenue shareback 865,870             1,171,580          
    Contingency 5,000                 12,758               

          Total expenditures 4,381,340          4,693,436          

TRANSFERS OUT
   General Fund 620,385             830,954             

        Total transfers out 620,385             830,954             

      Total appropriation 5,001,725          5,524,390          

ENDING FUND BALANCE 52,601$             52,601$             

12/9/2014
12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 121 of 154



 

 
STAFF REPORT 

      
 
TO:   Mayor Gunning and City Council 

FROM:  Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk  

DATE:  December 9, 2014 

FOR:   December 16, 2014 City Council Agenda Item 

SUBJECT: Resolution 14-25, Regarding Annual Administrative 
Matters for the City of Lone Tree for 2015 

Summary 
Our annual administrative resolution is attached. 
 
Cost 
There are no direct costs associated with this resolution. 
 
Suggested Motion or Recommended Action 
I move to approve Resolution 14-25, Regarding Annual Administrative Matters for 
the City of Lone Tree for 2015.  
 
Background 
Each year we approve our administrative resolution. The only change to this 
year’s resolution (other than dates and staff changes) is the removal of the 
requirement to prepare and file the Certificate of Compliance (Article 29 of Title 29 
C.R.S. regarding Immigration Status – Cooperation with Federal Officials) with the 
Department of Local Affairs. Article 29 was repealed in 2013. 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 122 of 154



CITY OF LONE TREE 
RESOLUTION NO. 14-25 

 
A RESOLUTION REGARDING 

ANNUAL ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
FOR THE CITY OF LONE TREE FOR 2015 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has a duty to perform certain obligations on a recurring basis 
in order to assure the efficient operation of the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has directed the administrative work of the City to be 
accomplished by its City Manager, City Clerk, Department Heads and consultants who act as the 
City Attorney, City Engineer, and Director of Public Works, (collectively the "Staff"); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to confirm certain general procedures for the conduct 
of its business and to authorize its elected officials and Staff to perform certain administrative 
activities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the matters set forth in this Resolution are statements of intention, and may 
be modified by action of the City Council, from time to time, without prior notice except where 
required by law and without waiving on a continuing basis these or other policies established by 
the City and its Charter (the "Charter");  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LONE TREE, COLORADO: 
 

1. Pursuant to Article IV, Section 1 & 2 of the Charter, the City Council determines to 
hold regular meetings on the 1st and 3rd Tuesday of every month at 6:00 p.m., at 8527 Lone Tree 
Parkway, in Lone Tree, Colorado.  Study sessions may commence at 4:30 p.m. on each such date.   
 

2. Should an individual City Council member or the Mayor choose to abstain from any 
particular matter on the agenda for reasons of potential conflict of interest, he or she shall be 
considered in attendance at the meeting for purposes of meeting quorum requirements. 
 

3. The City Council has adopted Ordinance 07-06 establishing rules for the governance 
of City Council Meetings.  
 

4. Pursuant to Article IV, Section 7 of the Charter, and in addition to Paragraph 1 of this 
Resolution, the City Council may hold study sessions as the Mayor or any two Council members may 
request upon at least twenty-four hours written notice to each Council member and by public notice 
through posting procedures established by this Resolution.  No quorum shall be required at any such 
study session and no legally binding or formal action shall be taken at any such session.  
 

5. Pursuant to Article IV, Section 4(a) of the Charter, City Council designates 9220 
Kimmer Drive, Suite 100, Lone Tree, Colorado, as the posting place for notices of meetings, in 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 123 of 154



Res 14-25 Page 2

accordance with Section 24-6-402(2)(c), C.R.S., which were not otherwise posted under Title 31, 
C.R.S.  The City Council directs the City Clerk to prepare notices for posting at the specified location. 

 
6. The City Council designates the Douglas County News-Press as the newspaper of 

general circulation within the boundaries of the City, and wherein all legal notices and publications 
for the City shall be published, unless otherwise required by state law.  
 

7. The City Manager shall be designated as the contact person with the Colorado 
Division of Local Government. 

 
8. The City Council acknowledges that in accordance with section 24-6-203, C.R.S., 

each City Council member who receives from another person any item described in subsection (3) of 
that section in connection with his or her public service is required to file with the City Clerk on or 
before January 15, April 15, July 15, and October 15 of each year, on a form prescribed by the 
Secretary of State, a report covering the period since the last report.  No report needs to be filed if a 
City Council member does not receive any of the described items.   

 
9. Minutes of all City Council regular and special meetings shall be taken by the City 

Clerk stating only the subject matter and final action taken by City Council, together with such 
supplemental notes as are requested by the City Council members and which are approved by the 
Mayor or by majority vote of the City Council including the Mayor.  Public meetings may be tape 
recorded for purposes of assisting the City Clerk to prepare accurately the official written Minutes.  
Tape recordings shall not constitute the official record of the City Council nor shall they constitute 
public records within the meaning of Colorado law.  Each executive session discussion shall be 
electronically recorded as required by subsection 24-6-402(d.5)(I)(A), C.R.S., and each recording 
shall be retained for ninety (90) days after the date of the recording pursuant to subsection 24-6-
402(d.5)(I)(E), C.R.S. 
 

10. The City Council hereby appoints Jennifer Pettinger as the Lone Tree City Clerk 
and appoints the City Manager as the Lone Tree City Treasurer.   

 
11. The City Council hereby appoints John Cotten as the Public Works Director and Greg 

Weeks as the City Engineer. 
 
12. The City Council hereby appoints Neil Rutledge of White Bear Ankele Tanaka & 

Waldron, P.C., as the City Attorney, to act as the City Attorney in all legal matters, with authority to 
engage or use associates and/or special counsel as Mr. White deems appropriate after advising the 
City Council. 
 

13. The City Council hereby reaffirms the appointment of Louis Gresh as the Lone 
Tree Municipal Judge with a fixed annual compensation of $60, payable at $5 per month. In 
addition to Judge Gresh’s annual compensation, he will be compensated $250 for the first two 
hours of each court session and $125 for each additional hour.  

 
 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 124 of 154



Res 14-25 Page 3

14. The City Council hereby designates each of the following attorneys who possess
the qualifications for the office to serve as a temporary judge on an ad hoc basis in Judge 
Gresh’s absence: Brad Yoder, Zoe Cole and Beth Elliot Dumler. The City Council hereby 
sets temporary judge’s compensation to be fixed at $250 for the first two hours of each court 
session and $125 for each additional hour. 

15. The City Council hereby appoints Louis Gresh as Hearing Officer for the City of
Lone Tree Local License Authority Compliance Division and Administrative Appeal Officer for 
the City of Lone Tree Sexually Oriented Businesses Licensing with compensation to be fixed at 
$250 for the first two hours of each session and $125 for each additional hour. 

16. The City Clerk is hereby appointed as the "Designated Election Official" of the City
for any elections to be held by the City.  In accordance with Title 31, C.R.S., the City Council hereby 
grants all powers and authority for the proper conduct of the election to the Designated Election 
Official, including but not limited to appointing election judges, appointing a canvass board and 
cancellation, if applicable, of the election.  

17. The City Council hereby appoints the Zoning and Development Services Coordinator
to be the City Forester. The duties of the City Forester are as stated in the City of Lone Tree Resolution 
01-21, and any previous appointment to that position is hereby repealed. 

18. The City Manager shall have the authority to enter into Subdivision Improvement
Agreements, the Site Improvement Plan Improvements Agreement and the Public Improvements 
Agreement on behalf of the City, such agreements to be substantially similar in form and substance 
to the Form Subdivision Improvement Agreement approved by the City Council.  The City Manager 
shall also have the authority to enter into and amend easement, license and other administrative 
documents on behalf of the City. 

19. In accordance with section 6-1-210 of the Municipal Code, the City Manager shall
have the authority to conduct all administrative matters related to the City of Lone Tree Local Liquor 
Licensing Authority that do not require a public hearing.  

20. The City Manager directs the City Clerk to prepare and file the annual Liquor and
Beer Code Violation Hearing Report Form with the Colorado Department of Revenue no later than 
January 9, 2015. 

21. The City Manager directs the Chief of Police to complete the Arrestee Immigration
Status Form (SB06-90) and submit to the Office of the Legislative Council no later than March 1, 
2015. 

22. The City Treasurer shall be responsible for preparation of the budget for the City, shall
manage the accounting and auditing services for the City to be performed by such persons as are 
authorized by the City Council, shall manage the public funds in accordance with all applicable 
Colorado laws and only by direction of the City Council, and shall report to the City Council on a 
monthly basis in written form the status of the City's financial accounts and records. 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 125 of 154



Res 14-25 Page 4

23. The City Manager shall direct Staff to submit a proposed budget to the City Council
by October 15, 2015 and to schedule a public hearing on the proposed budget; to prepare a final 
budget and budget resolution, to prepare amendments to the budget if necessary, and to file the 
approved budget and any amendments thereto with the proper governmental entities in accordance 
with the Local Government Budget Law of Colorado, sections 29-1-101 to 29-1-115, C.R.S. 

24. The City Manager shall direct the City Clerk to file a certified copy of the budget
to the Department of Local Governments in accordance with the Local Government Budget Law 
of Colorado, sections 29-1-113, C.R.S. 

25. The City Manager shall direct the City Clerk to forward a copy of the audit report
to the state auditor within thirty days after receipt of said audit in accordance with Local 
Government Budget Law of Colorado, section 29-1-606, C.R.S.  

26. The City Council directs the City Attorney to oversee the preparation of any
continuing annual disclosure report required to be filed in accordance with the Securities Exchange 
Commission Rule 15c2-12, if required. 

27. The City Council directs the City Attorney to prepare and file an informational
listing of all contracts in effect with other political subdivisions with the Division of Local 
Government on or before February 1, 2015, as required by section 29-1-205, C.R.S.   

28. The City Council directs the City Attorney to prepare the Unclaimed Property Act
report and forward to the State Treasurer by November 1, 2015, if there is property presumed 
abandoned and subject to custody as unclaimed property, in accordance with section 38-13-110, 
C.R.S., if required. 

29. The zoning map, as amended from time to time, shall be the official City map. A
copy of the official City map, showing the City's boundaries, is attached as Appendix A and shall be 
kept on file at the offices of the City Engineer, TST Inc. of Denver, 9222 Teddy Lane, in Lone Tree, 
Colorado, and shall be available for examination by all interested persons.  

30. As of this date, the City Council hereby reaffirms all existing contractual
relationships subject to annual appropriation, including, but not limited to, contractual relationships 
with TST Inc. of Denver and White Bear Ankele Tanaka & Waldron, P.C.. 

31. The following agreements concerning annexation and sales tax rebate arrangements
are subject to annual appropriation and are deemed renewed: 

i. Agreement with Colony Investments, Inc.
ii. Agreement with Park Meadows Business Improvement District

iii. Agreement with Cabela’s Wholesale Inc.
iv. Agreement with Kaiser Foundation Hospitals
v. Agreement with HCA-HealthONE LLC

vi. Agreement with tw Telecom Inc.
vii. Agreement with Best Buy

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 126 of 154



Res 14-25 Page 5

32. The City Council directs that an audit of the financial statements be prepared and
submitted to the City Council within six (6) months after fiscal year end.  The City Council further 
directs that the audit be filed with the State Auditor no later than thirty (30) days after the fiscal 
year audit is received by the City, as required by section 29-1-603, C.R.S. 

33. The City Council directs the City Manager to obtain proposals for insurance and to
insure the City against all or any part of the City's liability for injury, to insure the Mayor, City Council 
members, and City employees acting within the scope of employment by the City Council against all 
or any part of such liability for any injury, and to insure against the expense of defending a claim for 
injury against the City or its City Council.  The City Council will annually review all insurance 
policies in effect. 

34. The fee schedules contained in past resolutions or ordinances for services which might
be provided by the City to members of the public, including certification of documents, notarization 
of signatures, and other activities shall be extended indefinitely.  Any resolution or ordinance 
concerning fee schedules that is passed subsequent to this Resolution shall supersede the provisions 
of this section. 

35. City Council members and the Mayor shall continue to receive a stipend in the amount
established under the immediately preceding version of this Resolution plus 3% thereof as 
contemplated by the Charter. 

36. These procedures, rules, and duties may be supplemented from time to time in written
format either by adoption of additional resolutions or by action reflected in the minutes for the City 
Council. 

37. The effective date of this resolution is January 1, 2015.

ADOPTED AND APPROVED THIS 16th DAY OF DECEMBER, 2014. 

CITY OF LONE TREE 

By: 
      James D. Gunning, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

( S E A L ) 

Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 127 of 154



Res 14-25 Page 6

Appendix A 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 128 of 154



C1C2 C2

C2C3 C3

C3
C4

C5

C5

B

B

MF1

MF2

POS

POS

POS

POS

II

I

I

I
I

I

I

ROW

ROW

ROW

ROW

ROW

SR1

SR1 SR1

SR2

SR3

SR3

SR3
SR4

SRE

SRE

SRE

SRL
SRL

SRL

SRM

SRM

SRM

SRM
SRM

SRM

PD

PD

PD

PD

PD

PD

PD

PD

PD

PD

PD

PD

PD

PD

PD

PD

PD

§̈¦25

§̈¦25

PD

PD

Lincoln   AveLincoln   Ave

County   Line   Rd

Lone Tree Pkwy Yosemite
St

Ridgegate Pkwy

Ridgegate P kwy

Park Mea dows Dr

SRL

City of Lone Tree Zoning Map

I hereby certify that this is the Official Zoning Map of the City of Lone Tree 
duly adopted by Ordinance 09-09 on December 15, 2009 and reaffirmed 
by Resolution 14-25 on December 16, 2014.

__________________
James D. Gunning, Mayor

Attest:

__________________

F
0 0.5 1

Miles

Th e City h a s n umero us Pla n n ed Develo p men t (PD) zo n in gs.
Sp ecific PDs a re n o ted o n  th e City's website (ww w.cityo flo n etree.com), 
or co n ta ct th e Commun ity Develo p men t Dep a rtmen t for more 
in fo rma tio n  a t 303-708-1818

Un in co rp o ra ted Do ugla s Co un ty
ROW – Righ t of Wa y
POS – Pa rks & Op en  Sp a ce
PD – Pla n n ed Develo p men t
I – In stitutio n a l
C – Commercia l, Subzo n es C1-C5
B – Busin ess
MF – Multi-Fa mily, Subzo n e MF2
MF – Multi-Fa mily, Subzo n e MF1
SR – Suburba n  Residen tia l, Subzo n es SR3 & SR4
SR – Suburba n  Residen tia l, Subzo n es SR1, SR2, SRL & SRM
SR – Suburba n  Residen tia l, Subzo n e SRE

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 129 of 154



CITY OF LONE TREE 
RESOLUTION NO. 14-26 

 
A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE  

CITY OF LONE TREE AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

WHEREAS, on May 6, 2003, the City Council of the City of Lone Tree adopted Resolution 
No. 03-14 creating the Audit Committee (the “Committee”), for the purpose of enhancing the 
independence of the external financial auditor and the reliability of the City’s financial statement 
audits; and 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 09-15, increased the membership of the Committee to consist of 

six (6) members: three (3) appointed City residents who are certified public accountants or 
otherwise possess the expertise and experience in accounting, auditing, financial reporting and 
finance needed to understand and resolve issues raised by the independent audit of the City’s 
finance statements; one (1) member of the City Council; the City Manager; and the City’s Chief 
Financial Officer. The City Manager and the City’s Chief Financial Officer serve as ex-officio, 
non-voting members; and 

 
 WHEREAS, there will be a vacancy on the Committee created by Chris Howson’s 
resignation; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to appoint a member to that vacancy, such 
appointment to be effective on January 1, 2015. 

 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LONE TREE, COLORADO: 

 
That Peter Frenchman is hereby appointed to the Committee for the vacancy created by the 

resignation of Chris Howson for the remainder of his term, which expires on December 31, 2016. 
Mr. Frenchman’s appointment is effective as of January 1, 2015. 

 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 16th DAY OF DECEMBER, 2014. 
 
 
      CITY OF LONE TREE 
 
 

       
     James D. Gunning, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
         (S E A L) 
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 130 of 154



 

 
CITY OF LONE TREE 

STAFF REPORT 
      

 
TO:   Mayor Gunning and City Council 

FROM:  Seth Hoffman, City Manager 

DATE:  Wednesday, December 10, 2014 

FOR:   Tuesday, December 16, 2014 City Council Study Session 

SUBJECT: First Amendment to RidgeGate West Side Annexation and 
Development Agreement 

Background 
RidgeGate is a master-planned development managed and owned by Coventry 
Development Corporation that lies south of Lincoln Avenue in the City, on both the 
west and east sides of Interstate 25. These areas became part of the City of Lone 
Tree in 2001; the original annexation agreement to bring them into the City was 
recorded on September 5, 2000, and the original sales tax sharing agreement for 
the areas was recorded on October 17, 2001. Development of RidgeGate on the 
west side of I-25 began with the construction and opening of Sky Ridge Medical 
Center in 2003. Staff from City, RidgeGate, and infrastructure provider Rampart 
Range Metropolitan District are now planning ahead for development of the East 
side of RidgeGate, which could start as soon as the next 5-10 years, depending 
on when the right, large-scale catalytic project arrives to kick it off. The recent first 
approval of the Southeast Extension by the RTD Board of Directors is a promising 
sign that development plans for that area are proceeding as hoped, despite the 
recent recession.  
 
Updated Agreement 
This amendment to this agreement covers the west side of RidgeGate only, as 
shown on the attached map. It replaces the original 2001 agreement for that area. 
Once this West Side agreement is approved, we will begin negotiating a 
replacement agreement of the East side. 
 
Additionally, as part of this updated agreement, certain streets in the RidgeGate 
area will now be dedicated to, and then accepted and maintained by the City.  
 
 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 131 of 154



 

Cost 
Shareback calculations will be adjusted pursuant to the new agreement.  
Additionally, with the acceptance of certain streets into the City, we estimate 
capital costs related to road improvements will be incurred over the next five 
years with a portion of these costs to be reimbursed by the Rampart Range 
Metro District.     
 
Additionally, the budget will be amended in 2015 to reflect that the City no longer 
has to use a special revenue fund to account for West side financial activity. This 
will come back to Council for action early next year.   
 
Suggested Motion or Recommended Action 
I move to approve the First Amendment to the Annexation and Development 
Agreement with RidgeGate Investments, Inc.  
 
I move to approve RidgeGate West Side Agreement Regarding Dedication, 
Acceptance and Maintenance of Public Improvements and Sales Tax Sharing. 
 
I move to approve the Amendment to Sales Tax Sharing Agreement between the 
City and RidgeGate Investments, Inc. effective January 1, 2015. 
 
 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 132 of 154



 

437847.2 

FIRST AMENDMENT 
 TO  

ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

 This First Amendment (this "Amendment") is entered into effective as of 
January 1, 2015 between RIDGEGATE INVESTMENTS, INC., a Delaware corporation 
(“RidgeGate”), and the CITY OF LONE TREE, a home rule municipal corporation and 
political subdivision of the State of Colorado (the “City”). 

Recitals 

 A. The City and RidgeGate (as assignee of Colony Investments, Inc.) are 
parties to that certain Annexation and Development Agreement recorded in the real 
property records of Douglas County, Colorado on September 5, 2000 in Book 1890 at 
Page 2324 (the “Annexation Agreement”).  Capitalized terms used herein and not defined 
shall have the meanings given such terms in the Annexation Agreement. 

 B. Simultaneously with the execution of this Amendment, RidgeGate, the 
City and Rampart Range Metropolitan District No. 1 (the "District") are entering into an 
agreement (the "West Side Agreement") regarding dedication, acceptance and 
maintenance of public improvements on the portion of the Property located on the west 
side of I-25 (the "West Side Property"), and the sharing of Sales Tax revenues generated 
from transactions occurring within, and the taxable exercise of any privilege on or with 
respect to, the West Side Property. 
 
 C. In connection therewith, RidgeGate and the City desire to exclude the 
West Side Property from certain provisions of the Annexation Agreement that are in 
conflict or inconsistent with the provisions of the West Side Agreement (so that such 
provisions shall hereafter apply only to the portion of the Property located on the east 
side of I-25 (the "East Side Property")), and to delete from the Annexation Agreement 
certain provisions that have been fully performed or are otherwise no longer applicable or 
relevant. 
 

Amendment 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, RidgeGate and the City hereby agree as 
follows: 
 

1. Amendment of Definitions.  The definitions of the terms Improvements, 
Sales Tax and Total Costs in Section I(A) of the Annexation Agreement are each hereby 
amended by substituting the words "East Side Property" in place of the word "Property" 
in each instance where the latter appears therein. 

 
2. Amendment of Provisions Regarding City Obligations.  Subsection C of 

Article II of the Annexation Agreement is hereby amended by substituting the words 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 133 of 154



 

437847.2 2 

"East Side Property" in place of the word "Property" in each instance where the latter 
appears therein. 

3. Amendment of Sales Tax Sharing Provisions.  Article IV of the 
Annexation Agreement and Exhibit C to the Annexation Agreement are hereby amended 
by substituting the words "East Side Property" in place of the word "Property" in each 
instance where the latter appears therein. 

4. Deletion of Articles VIII and IX.  Articles VIII and IX of the Annexation 
Agreement are hereby deleted in their entirety, the fourth sentence of subsection C(1) of 
Article II of the Annexation Agreement (beginning with "In paragraph IX below,") is 
hereby deleted, the phrase "after deducting the Total Costs relating to Lincoln Avenue 
Maintenance for the first five years, and thereafter," is hereby deleted from the fifth 
sentence of subsection C(1) of Article II of the Annexation Agreement, and the phrase 
"except pursuant to Section IX below related to Lincoln Avenue maintenance is hereby 
deleted from the last sentence of subsection C(2) of Article II of the Annexation 
Agreement. 

5. Amendment of Notice Provision.  The addresses for notices to RidgeGate 
in Section XIX(H) of the Annexation Agreement are amended to read as follows:. 

 
To RidgeGate:: RidgeGate Investments, Inc. 
   c/o Coventry Development Corporation 
   1041 Third Avenue, 2nd Floor 
   New York, New York  10065 
   Attn:  Robert Asselbergs 

with a copy to:  RidgeGate Investments, Inc. 
   c/o Coventry Development Corporation 
   10270 Commonwealth Street, Suite B 
   Lone Tree, Colorado  80124 
   Attn:  Keith Simon 

with a copy to:  Robinson Waters & O'Dorisio, P.C. 
   1099 18th Street, Suite 2600 
   Denver, Colorado  80202 
   Attn:  Paul Timmins 

6.  
Except as specifically amended hereby, the Annexation Agreement is not altered 

or amended, and it remains in full force and effect. 
 

[signature page follows] 
 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 134 of 154



 

437847.2 3 

 
 
EXECUTED as of the date first set forth above. 
 

RIDGEGATE INVESTMENTS, INC., 
a Delaware corporation 
 

 
By:_________________________________  

      Robert Asselbergs, President 
 
 
 

CITY OF LONE TREE, COLORADO, 
 
 
 
By:_______________________________________ 
      _______________________, _______________ 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
City Clerk 

 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 135 of 154



  DRAFT 
  City Draft – December 11, 2014 

 

{00373320.DOC v:3 }438052.7  
010218\0003\11598043.6  

RIDGEGATE WEST SIDE AGREEMENT 
REGARDING 

DEDICATION, ACCEPTANCE AND MAINTENANCE OF PUBLIC 
IMPROVEMENTS AND SALES TAX SHARING 

 
 This Agreement (this "Agreement") is entered into and is effective as of 
January 1, 2015 among RIDGEGATE INVESTMENTS, INC., a Delaware corporation 
(“RidgeGate”), RAMPART RANGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1, a quasi-
municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado ("RRMD#1"), 
and the CITY OF LONE TREE, a home rule municipal corporation and political 
subdivision of the State of Colorado (the “City”). 

Recitals 

 A. The City and RidgeGate (as assignee of Colony Investments, Inc.) are 
parties to that certain Annexation and Development Agreement recorded in the real 
property records of Douglas County, Colorado on September 5, 2000 in Book 1890 at 
Page 2324 (the “Annexation Agreement”), and that certain Sales Tax Sharing Agreement 
recorded in the real property records of Douglas County, Colorado on October 17, 2001 
in Book 2155 at Page 1369 (as modified by that certain Memorandum of Understanding 
dated May 1, 2012 (“Cabela’s MOU”) among the parties to this Agreement, the “2001 
Sales Tax Sharing Agreement”). 

 B. As contemplated by the Annexation Agreement and 2001 Sales Tax 
Sharing Agreement, RRMD#1 was created for the purpose of providing certain public 
improvements and services to and for the benefit of the property located within the 
boundaries of the special districts contemplated in the service plan that governs 
RRMD#1and that is located within the boundaries of the City as a result of the 
annexation contemplated and authorized by the Annexation Agreement (such property 
annexed to the City pursuant to the Annexation Agreement is referred to herein as the 
"Property"). 
 
 C. Simultaneously with the execution of this Agreement, RidgeGate and the 
City are entering into amendments to the Annexation Agreement and the 2001 Sales Tax 
Sharing Agreement that (a) exclude all that portion of the Property located west of I-25 
(the “West Side Property”) from the 2001 Sales Tax Sharing Agreement, and (b) exclude 
the West Side Property from the provisions of the Annexation Agreement regarding 
dedication and maintenance of public improvements and the sharing of revenues 
generated from any sales tax, lodging tax, admissions tax or use tax imposed by the City, 
or on its behalf, which is imposed on taxable transactions occurring within, on or with 
respect to the West Side Property.  
 
 D. The Parties are entering into this Agreement to set forth their current 
agreement and understanding with respect to matters described in provisions (a) and (b) 
in recital C above.     
 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 136 of 154



010218\0003\11598043.6 2 

 NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, RidgeGate, RRMD#1 and the City 
hereby agree as follows: 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

1. Definitions; General Provisions.   

(a) Definitions.  For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall 
have the following meanings: 

 
"Agreement" means this RidgeGate West Side Agreement Regarding Dedication, 

Acceptance and Maintenance of Public Improvements and Sales Tax Sharing, including 
the exhibits attached hereto. 

 
“Cabela’s Incentive Agreement” means that certain agreement entered into on or 

about September _____, 2012, between the City and Cabela’s, Inc., in which the City 
agrees to pay to Cabela’s certain incentive payments for economic development 
purposes. 

 
"District(s)" means RRMD#1 or any other special districts or other similar entities 

as designated from time to time by RidgeGate as provided in Section 8(h) below to 
receive the District Shared Sales Taxes, unless the context specifically indicates a lesser 
inclusive reference to districts. 

 
"District Shared Sales Taxes" has the meaning given such term in Section 8(b) 

below. 
 
"East Side Agreement" has the meaning given such term in Section 7 below. 
 
"East Side Property" means the portion of the Property located east of I-25. 
 
"Existing Street/Sidewalk Improvements" has the meaning given such term in 

Section 2 below. 
 
"Future Street/Sidewalk Improvements" has the meaning given such term in 

Section 3 below. 
 
"IGA Amendments" has the meaning given such term in Section 8 below. 
 
“Library Agreement” means that certain agreement by and among the City, 

RRMD#1, the Douglas County Libraries, a library district (“Library District”), and 
Lincoln Commons South, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“LCS”) dated as of [________] 
in which LCS has agreed to convey to the City a parcel of land described as Lot 2, 
RidgeGate Section 15, Filing No. 21, 2nd Amendment, and consisting of 2.376 acres, 
which the parties have valued at approximately $1.4 million, and which the City in turn 
intends to convey to the Library District (“New Library Property”). 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 137 of 154



010218\0003\11598043.6 3 

 
"Parties" means RidgeGate, RRMD#1, and the City, and "Party" means any of 

RidgeGate, RRMD#1, or the City. 
 
"RidgeGate" means RidgeGate Investments, Inc., it successors and assigns. 
 
"Upgrades" has the meaning given such term in Section 4 below. 
 
"West Side Property" has the meaning given such term in Recital C above. 
 
"West Side Sales Tax Rebate Payments" means the payment of the District 

Shared Sales Taxes to be made by the City pursuant to Section 8 below. 
 
"West Side Shared Sales Taxes" has the meaning given such term in Section 8(b) 

below. 
 
"West Side Sales Tax Sharing Period" has the meaning given such term in Section 

8(b) below. 
 
(b) Effective Date and Term.  This Agreement shall be effective as of the date 

first set forth above and shall represent the valid, binding and legally enforceable 
obligation of each of the Parties until such time as each of the terms and conditions 
hereof has been performed in its entirety or until this Agreement is terminated by mutual 
written agreement of the Parties hereto.   This Agreement shall terminate as to 
RidgeGate, and RidgeGate shall no longer have any rights or obligations pursuant to this 
Agreement, on December 31, 2032. 

 
(c) Condition Precedent.  The City’s obligations hereunder shall not become 

effective and binding on the City until approval by City Council and execution of this 
Agreement and the Library Agreement.  RRMD#1’s obligations hereunder shall not 
become effective and binding on RRMD#1 until approval by the Board of Directors of 
RRMD#1 and execution of this Agreement and consent of the lenders of RRMD#1 that 
have an interest in the revenues under the 2001 Sales Tax Sharing Agreement. 

 
2. Acceptance of Existing Street/Sidewalk Improvements.  Concurrent 

with the execution of this Agreement, RRMD#1 hereby dedicates to the City and the City 
hereby accepts from RRMD#1 for perpetual ownership, repair, replacement, operation 
and maintenance, all streets, sidewalks, street and pedestrian lighting, safety protection 
and all appurtenant facilities identified in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by this reference (collectively, the "Existing Street/Sidewalk Improvements").  
The City hereby agrees to hereafter perform all maintenance and repair of the Existing 
Street/Sidewalk Improvements at the City's sole cost and expense in the same manner and 
to the same standards as the City maintains, repairs and replaces all other streets and 
sidewalks elsewhere in the City (except as provided in Section 4 below with regard to 
Upgrades), including without limitation: 

(a) all street maintenance from back of curbline to back of curbline; 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 138 of 154



010218\0003\11598043.6 4 

(b) all street lighting maintenance and operation (including cost of 
electricity); 

(c) all sidewalk maintenance; and 

(d) all other standard City services for street maintenance, including 
snow removal for both streets and sidewalks. 

The City accepts the Existing Street/Sidewalk Improvements in their current "AS 
IS" condition with all faults latent or patent, and agrees that neither RidgeGate nor 
RRMD#1 shall hereafter have any obligations of any kind to perform or pay for any 
operation, improvement, maintenance, repair or replacement of the Existing 
Street/Sidewalk Improvements. 

 
3. Future Street/Sidewalk Improvements.  The City agrees that it will 

hereafter accept all streets, sidewalks, street and pedestrian lighting, and all appurtenant 
facilities hereafter constructed or installed within the West Side Property (collectively, 
the "Future Street/Sidewalk Improvements") in accordance with the subdivision 
improvements standards and procedures adopted by the City at the time of such 
dedication.   The Parties acknowledge that, as of the effective date of this Agreement, the 
City has adopted the Douglas County standards.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
however, once streets to be dedicated to the City in the future pursuant to this Section 3 
have been opened to the public for public use and access, the City agrees that it will 
accept responsibility for snow removal activities on such streets upon initial acceptance 
of same. 

4. Maintenance and Repair of Upgrades.  Notwithstanding the provisions 
of Section 2 above, if an improvement accepted by the City includes any of the 
components listed in Exhibit B attached hereto (collectively, "Upgrade(s)"), subject to 
the budget approval process described in this Section 4, RRMD#1 shall be responsible for 
any marginal cost of maintenance, repair or replacement of such Upgrades over and 
above the cost that would otherwise be incurred by the City if such Upgrades were not 
included (the "Marginal Cost").  The presence of such Upgrades in any accepted 
improvement shall be identified by RRMD#1 in writing during the acceptance process.  
To the extent the City determines to repair and/or replace one or more of the Upgrades, 
the City shall provide RRMD#1 with notice of the City’s intent to repair or replace an 
Upgrade, including a preliminary budget of the Marginal Costs associated therewith to 
RRMD#1 no later than October 15 of the year prior to the year in which such repair or 
replacement is intended to occur (“Upgrade Notice”).  RRMD#1 shall review the 
Upgrade Notice and determine in its sole discretion and no later than December 15 of the 
year of the request, whether RRMD#1 will participate in the Marginal Cost of the 
Upgrade.  RRMD#1 shall notify the City no later than December 15 of the year in which 
the Upgrade Notice is received.  If RRMD#1 determines to participate in the Marginal 
Cost of an Upgrade in accordance with an Upgrade Notice, it shall appropriate funds 
therefor in its budget for the following year.  For example, if replacement of a paver 
crosswalk becomes necessary and RRMD#1 determines to participate in the Marginal 
Cost in accordance with the process described in this Section 4, RRMD#1 shall reimburse 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 139 of 154



010218\0003\11598043.6 5 

the City for the Marginal Cost of installing new pavers, and the City shall replace the 
crosswalk with the same material as existed at the time of acceptance.  If the City does 
not elect to provide an Upgrade Notice to RRMD#1 in accordance with this Section or if 
the City determines not to repair or replace the improvement(s) to the same standard as 
the Upgrade, the City may replace the Upgrade with the City's standard item or material.  

5. Maintenance of RRMD#1 Improvements.  The Parties acknowledge and 
agree that RRMD#1 has constructed and will construct certain public improvements 
authorized pursuant to its service plan that are not expected to be offered to the City for 
acceptance or dedicated to other governmental entities.  RRMD#1 shall remain 
responsible for maintenance, operation, repair and replacement of all such public 
improvements constructed, retained and owned by RRMD#1.  Such improvements may 
include but are not limited to certain park and recreation, drainage, and parking facilities.  
The Parties acknowledge and agree that it may be necessary to enter into license, 
easement or other similar arrangements with respect to the RRMD#1’s maintenance, 
operation, repair or replacement of such improvements.  The Parties agree to negotiate in 
good faith to enter into any such required agreements. 

6. Payments for Maintenance Costs.  In order to offset costs incurred by 
the City in connection with the City’s maintenance and operation of improvements likely 
to be accepted by the City during the years 2015 through 2019, RRMD#1 shall, subject to 
annual appropriation, make five annual payments of $250,000 each on or before July 1 of 
each such five years.  If, in any year during the years 2015 through 2019, RRMD#1 fails 
to appropriate such amounts or appropriates less than the full amount due and owing 
pursuant to this Section 6, RRMD#1 agrees that such amount shall accrue and be added 
to the amounts due and owing in subsequent years, and shall bear interest at the rate of 
six percent (6%) per annum from the date due until paid.  

7. Amendments to Intergovernmental Agreements.  The Parties 
acknowledge that, simultaneously with the execution of the East Side Agreement, the 
City and each of Rampart Range Metropolitan District Nos. 2 and 7 (“District Nos. 2 
and 7”) are anticipated to enter into amendments to their respective Intergovernmental 
Agreements with the City dated September 18, 2005 (“City IGAs”) whereby District 
Nos. 2 and 7 shall, commencing in the tax collection year 2024, impose an additional 
operational mill levy in the amount of one (1) mill.  Subject to annual appropriation, the 
revenues generated from such one (1) mill levy shall be paid to the City and used by the 
City for the maintenance and repair of the Existing Street/Sidewalk Improvements and 
Future Street/Sidewalk Improvements, subject to all the terms, limitations and conditions 
set forth in such amendments (the "IGA Amendments").  If RRMD#1 fails to appropriate 
such amounts in any given year, or appropriates less than the full amount due and owing 
pursuant to this Section 7, RRMD#1 agrees that such amount shall accrue and be added 
to the amounts due and owing in subsequent years, and shall bear interest at the rate of 
six percent (6%) per annum from the date due until paid.    

 

 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 140 of 154



010218\0003\11598043.6 6 

8. Sales Tax Sharing. 

(a) 2001 Sales Tax Sharing Agreement, Sales Tax Rebate Revenues 
and Outstanding RRMD#1 Obligations.  The Parties recognize and agree that, pursuant to 
correspondence dated October 9, 2012, RidgeGate exercised its right to commence 
payment of the Sales Tax Rebate Revenues (defined in the 2001 Sales Tax Sharing 
Agreement) pursuant to the terms of the 2001 Sales Tax Sharing Agreement effective as 
of January 1, 2013 (“Trigger Notice”).  Pursuant to the Trigger Notice, RidgeGate 
directed all Sales Tax Rebate Revenues to be paid to RRMD#1 as a result of RRMD#1’s 
pledge of such revenues to its then outstanding Tax Supported Refunding Revenue Note, 
Series 2012 issued in the original principal amount of $70,000,000 (the “2012 Loan”).  
RRMD#1 has since refunded the 2012 Loan and issued additional debt in the form of its 
Tax Supported Refunding Revenue Note, Series 2013A issued in the original principal 
amount of $50,000,000 and its Tax Supported Refunding Revenue Note, Series 2013B 
issued in the original principal amount of $70,000,000 (as amended or modified from 
time to time, the “Outstanding Debt”).  The repayment of the Outstanding Debt was 
secured, in part, by a pledge of the Sales Tax Rebate Revenues under the 2001 Sales Tax 
Sharing Agreement.  The lender of the Outstanding Debt has agreed that a pledge of the 
District Shared Sales Taxes that RRMD#1 will be entitled to receive under this 
Agreement shall be substituted in place of the prior pledge of the Sales Tax Rebate 
Revenues under the 2001 Sales Tax Sharing Agreement.  Accordingly, RidgeGate hereby 
directs the City to pay all District Shared Sales Taxes due hereunder to RRMD#1 until 
otherwise directed by RidgeGate. 

(b) Sharing of West Side Sales Taxes.  During the period commencing 
on January 1, 2014 and ending on December 31, 2032 (the “West Side Tax Sharing 
Period”), all sales tax, lodging tax, admissions tax or use tax collected by the City, or on 
its behalf, on taxable transactions occurring within, or the taxable exercise of any 
privilege on or with respect to activities occurring within the West Side Property or any 
portion thereof, without any deduction whatsoever other than the deduction of all 
amounts that the City is required to rebate to Cabela's Wholesale, Inc. (“Cabela's”) 
pursuant to the existing Cabela’s Incentive Agreement and Cabela’s MOU (collectively, 
the "West Side Shared Sales Taxes") shall be shared between the City and the District as 
provided in this Section 8.  The City shall pay the following portions of the West Side 
Shared Sales Taxes to the District (such portions to be paid to the District being referred 
to herein as the “District Shared Sales Taxes”): 

(i) During the period commencing on January 1, 2014 and 
ending on December 31, 2018,  the District shall receive forty-five percent (45%) of the 
West Side Shared Sales Taxes; and 

(ii) During the period commencing on January 1, 2019 and 
ending on December 31, 2023, the District shall receive twenty-five percent (25%) of the 
West Side Shared Sales Taxes; and 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 141 of 154



010218\0003\11598043.6 7 

(iii) During the period commencing on January 1, 2024 and 
ending on December 31, 2028, the District shall receive fifteen percent (15%) of the West 
Side Shared Sales Taxes; and 

(iv) During the period commencing on January 1, 2029 and 
ending on December 31, 2032, the District shall receive ten percent (10%) of the West 
Side Shared Sales Taxes. 

(c) Not later than July 31, 2015, the City shall complete payment of 
District Shared Sales Taxes for the fiscal year 2014, together with payment for the first 
calendar quarter of 2015 and shall remit a Shared Sales Tax Report (defined below) for 
each such payment.  Thereafter, the City shall make payment to RRMD#1 of the District 
Shared Sales Taxes collected in each calendar quarter within sixty (60) days after the end 
of each calendar quarter.  Any such amount not paid when due shall bear interest at the 
rate of six percent (6%) per annum from the date due until paid. 

(d) The City hereby forever waives and relinquishes any claim arising 
prior to, or relating to any period prior to, the effective date of this Agreement that the 
City may have with regard to any amounts owing to the City from either RRMD#1 or 
RidgeGate under the Annexation Agreement and/or the 2001 Sales Tax Sharing 
Agreement, including, without limitation, the disputed “Shortfall” for 2011.   

(e) During the West Side Sales Tax Sharing Period, the City agrees to 
account for all of the West Side Shared Sales Taxes in a manner which will enable the 
Parties to determine that the West Side Shared Sales Taxes have been properly allocated.  

(f) The City will diligently enforce the collection of the West Side 
Shared Sales Taxes no less diligently than elsewhere in the City.  RidgeGate and 
RRMD#1 acknowledge the sales tax returns filed by individual retailers are confidential, 
and RidgeGate and RRMD#1 agree not to request such returns or other information 
which could reasonably lead to the identification of sales taxes collected by any 
individual retailer within the City whether informally or by any open records act request 
authorized by state or federal law.  Provided, however, with each quarterly payment 
pursuant to subsection (c) above, the City shall deliver to RidgeGate and the District a 
“Shared Sales Tax Report” including statistical and accounting reports of all West Side 
Shared Sales Taxes received by the City in such fiscal year, and, if authorized by 
Cabela’s in writing to the City, any deductions for sales tax rebates paid to Cabela’s 
pursuant to the Cabela’s Incentive Agreement and/or Cabela’s MOU which have been 
used by the City in determining the amount of the West Side Shared Sales Taxes being 
rebated to the District and a copy of all checks paid by the City to Cabela’s pursuant to 
the Cabela’s Incentive Agreement.  RidgeGate and the District shall each have the right 
to audit the City's computation of the District Shared Sales Taxes and West Side Shared 
Sales Taxes.  Except in the case of contests for which RidgeGate or the District has 
alleged a default pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, audits shall not occur more 
than once annually and only at the time the City subjects its records to audits required by 
state law.  All costs incurred by the City in connection with preparation of the Shared 
Sales Tax Report shall be borne by the City; provided, however that any such reasonable 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 142 of 154



010218\0003\11598043.6 8 

costs incurred by the City in connection with any audit requested or required by 
RidgeGate or the District, shall be borne by RidgeGate or the District, unless such audit 
determines that the actual amount of West Side Shared Sales Taxes or District Shared 
Sales Taxes for any period exceeds the amounts stated in any Shared Sales Tax Report by 
the City for such period by more than five percent (5%), in which event such costs shall 
be borne by the City.  Payment of the District Shared Sales Taxes shall continue and shall 
not be impeded during the period of time any audit or review is underway pursuant to this 
section. 

(g) The West Side Sales Tax Rebate Payments shall be made subject 
to the express conditions and limitations set forth in this subsection (g).  All West Side 
Sales Tax Rebate Payments hereunder shall be expressly subject to annual appropriation 
by the City; provided, however, that it is the present intent and expectation of the Parties 
that the City will in fact make all of the payments contemplated by this Agreement.  
None of the obligations of the City hereunder to RidgeGate, or to any other person or 
entity, shall be required to be paid from any source other than the West Side Shared Sales 
Taxes.   

(h) Upon the expiration, release or satisfaction of the existing pledge 
of the District Shared Sales Taxes as security for the repayment of the Outstanding Debt, 
RidgeGate, in its sole discretion, may designate another entity to which the District 
Shared Sales Taxes may be directed.  Any entity designated to receive District Shared 
Sales Taxes must be an entity with the responsibility for financing, constructing, owning, 
operating or maintaining public improvements within the Property for the benefit of the 
public and the residents of the Property.  Any such designation must be made prior to 
completion of a calendar quarter and in writing to the City.  

(i) The Parties each agree that they shall not, subsequent to the date of 
this Agreement, enter into any agreement in which such Party pledges payment to another 
party the revenues promised to the other Party in this Agreement.  

9. Appropriation.  Pursuant to Section 29-1-110, C.R.S., any financial 
obligations of RRMD#1 contained herein, and the obligations of Districts Nos. 2 and 7 
under the amendments referenced in Section 8 above, that are payable after the current 
fiscal year are contingent upon funds for that purpose being appropriated, budgeted and 
otherwise made available on an annual basis; provided, however, that it is the present 
intent and expectation of the Parties that RRMD#1 will in fact make all of the payments 
contemplated by this Agreement.  RRMD#1 hereby represents that it intends to 
appropriate the amounts payable under this Agreement to the fullest extent permitted by 
law.  In the event of a failure by RRMD#1 to appropriate, the additional provisions set 
forth in Section 6 and Section 7 shall apply.   

10. Miscellaneous Provisions. 

(a) Relationship of Parties.  This Agreement does not and shall not be 
construed as creating a relationship of joint venturers, partners, or employer-employee 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 143 of 154



010218\0003\11598043.6 9 

among the Parties.  No Party shall, with respect to an activity, be considered as agent or 
employee of any other Party. 

(b) Amendment.  This Agreement may be modified, amended, 
changed or terminated, except as otherwise provided herein, in whole or in part, only by 
agreement in writing duly authorized and executed by each of the Parties. 

(c) Entire Agreement.  Except as specifically set forth herein, this 
Agreement contains the entire agreement among the Parties and no statement, promise or 
inducement made by any Party or the agent of any Party that is not contained in this 
Agreement shall be valid or binding. 

(d) Third Party Challenges.  In the event of any legal challenge by a 
third party to the validity or enforceability of any provision of this Agreement, the Parties 
agree to cooperate in the defense of such challenge and to bear their own costs and 
attorneys' fees.  During the pendency of any such legal challenge, the Parties agree to 
abide by and carry out all of the terms of this Agreement, unless otherwise ordered by a 
court of competent jurisdiction. 

(e) Severability.  Invalidation of any of the provisions of this 
Agreement or of any paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or word herein, or the 
application thereof in any given circumstance, shall not affect the validity of any other 
provision of this Agreement. 

(f) Applicable Law.  This Agreement shall be enforceable according 
to the laws of the State of Colorado. 

(g) Best Efforts.  Each Party shall use its best efforts and shall 
cooperate with regard to any other action as may be reasonably required to effectuate the 
intention of this Agreement. 

(h) Notices.  Any notice, request, demand, consent, approval or other 
communication required or permitted under this Agreement (collectively, “Notices”) 
shall be in writing and shall be addressed to the Parties as set forth below.  Notices shall 
be (a) delivered by courier service, in which case they shall be deemed delivered on the 
first business day after deposit thereof with the courier service, (b) sent by certified mail, 
return receipt requested, in which case they shall be deemed delivered three (3) days after 
deposit in the United States mail, (c) transmitted by facsimile transmission, in which case 
they shall be deemed delivered when delivery has been electronically confirmed by the 
recipient's facsimile machine, as evidenced by the written confirmation produced by the 
sender's facsimile machine, or (d) by personal delivery, in which case they shall be 
deemed delivered when so delivered.  Any Party may change its address, its facsimile 
machine number, or the name and address of its attorneys by giving at least five (5) days 
advance Notice thereof in compliance with this Section.  The addresses and facsimile 
machine numbers of the Parties are: 

To the City of Lone Tree: City of Lone Tree 
9220 Kimmer Dr. 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 144 of 154



010218\0003\11598043.6 10 

Lone Tree, CO 80124 
Attn: Seth Hoffman 

with a copy to: White, Bear & Ankele Professional Corporation
2154 E. Commons Ave., Suite 2000 Centennial, 
CO 80122 
Attn:  Gary White 

To RidgeGate Investments, 
Inc. 

c/o Coventry Development Corporation 
1041 Third Avenue, 2nd Floor 
New York, New York  10065 
Attn:  Robert Asselbergs 

with a copy to: RidgeGate Investments, Inc. 
c/o Coventry Development Corporation 
10270 Commonwealth Street, Suite B 
Lone Tree, Colorado  80124 
Attn:  Keith Simon 

and to: Robinson Waters & O'Dorisio, P.C. 
1099 18th Street, Suite 2600 
Denver, Colorado  80202 
Attn:  Paul Timmins 

To Rampart Range 
Metropolitan District No. 1 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 
8390 E. Crescent Parkway, Suite 600 
Greenwood Village, CO 80111-2811 
Attn:  Denise Denslow 

with a copy to: McGeady Sisneros, PC 
450 E. 17th Avenue, Suite 400 
Denver, Colorado 80203 
Attn:  Megan Becher 

 

(i) TABOR.  If any provision hereof is declared void or unenforceable 
due to a purported violation of Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution, the 
City or the RRMD#1, as appropriate, shall take all such action as may be necessary to 
cure such violation, including, but not limited to, acquiring voter approvals, either in 
advance of, or following the purported violation, as may be allowed by law. 

(j) Time is of the Essence.  Time is of the essence hereof; provided 
however, that if the last day permitted or the date otherwise determined for the 
performance of any act required or permitted under this Agreement falls on a Saturday, 
Sunday or legal holiday, the time for performance shall be extended to the next 
succeeding business day, unless otherwise expressly stated. 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 145 of 154



010218\0003\11598043.6 11 

(k) Third Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing expressed or implied in this 
Agreement is intended or shall be construed to confer upon, or to give to, any legal 
person other than the Parties, any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this 
Agreement or any covenants, terms, conditions, or provisions thereof, and all of the 
covenants, terms, conditions, and provisions in this Agreement by and on behalf of the 
Parties shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Parties. 

(l) Litigation Costs; Attorneys Fees.  In the event of any litigation 
between the Parties hereto concerning the subject matter hereof, the prevailing Party(ies) 
in such litigation shall be entitled to receive from the non-prevailing Party(ies), in 
addition to the amount of any judgment or other award entered therein, all reasonable 
costs and expenses, including attorney fees, incurred by the prevailing Party in such 
litigation. 

(m) Compliance with Law.  The Parties agree to comply with all valid 
federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations which are now, or in the future may 
become applicable to the Parties, to their business or operations, or to services required to 
be provided by this Agreement that are not inconsistent with this Agreement. 

(n) Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed in any number of 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of with together shall 
constitute one and the same document. 

EXECUTED as of the date first set forth above. 
 

RIDGEGATE INVESTMENTS, INC., 
a Delaware corporation 
 

 
By:_________________________________  

      Robert Asselbergs, President 
 
 
 
 

RAMPART RANGE METROPOLITAN 
DISTRICT NO. 1 
 
 
 
By:_______________________________________ 
      Keith D. Simon, President 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 146 of 154



010218\0003\11598043.6 12 

Secretary 
 
 

CITY OF LONE TREE, COLORADO 
 
 
 
By:_______________________________________ 
James D. Gunning, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
City Clerk 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 147 of 154



 

{00373320.DOC v:3 }438052.7 A-1 
010218\0003\11598043.6  

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
Existing Street/Sidewalk Improvements 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[see attached] 
 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 148 of 154



0

ORIGINAL GRAPHIC SCALE

150- 300 300 600

CITY OF LONE TREE - STREETS (PREVIOUSLY ACCEPTED BY THE CITY)

RAMPART RANGE METRO DISTRICT - STREETS (ACCEPTED WITH THIS AGREEMENT)

DEVELOPER - STREETS (IN ACCEPTANCE PROCESS WITH CITY)

RAMPART RANGE METRO DISTRICT - PERMANENT RESPONSIBILTY

Q
:\

DE
N

\P
ro

je
ct

s\
50

89
-0

0-
Co

ve
nt

ry
 O

ve
ra

ll\
De

sig
n\

Ex
hi

bi
ts

\S
ec

tio
n 

15
 S

tr
ee

t M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 M
ap

\S
tr

ee
t M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 M

ap
 - 

Si
de

w
al

k 
12

12
14

.d
w

g,
 L

ay
ou

t1
, 1

2/
15

/2
01

4 
1:

59
:4

3 
PM

, n
br

ow
n,

 1
:1

.0
00

1

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 149 of 154



 

438052.7 C-1 
010218\0003\11598043.6  

EXHIBIT B 
 

Upgrades 
 
 
 
 
 

[to be inserted] 
 
 
 
 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 150 of 154



Q
:\

D
EN

\P
ro

je
ct

s\
50

87
-0

1-
RR

M
D

 O
ve

ra
ll\

Ex
hi

bi
ts

\2
01

4-
10

07
-U

pg
ra

de
d 

St
re

et
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
\U

pg
ra

de
d 

St
re

et
 Im

p 
Ex

h.
dw

g,
 L

ay
ou

t1
, 1

0/
9/

20
14

 1
:3

9:
05

 P
M

, 1
:1

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 151 of 154



 

438051.2 

 
AMENDMENT TO SALES TAX SHARING AGREEMENT 

 
 This Amendment (this "Amendment") is entered into effective as of January 1, 
2015 between RIDGEGATE INVESTMENTS, INC., a Delaware corporation 
(“RidgeGate”), and the CITY OF LONE TREE, a home rule municipal corporation and 
political subdivision of the State of Colorado (the “City”). 

Recitals 

 A. The City and RidgeGate (as assignee of Colony Investments, Inc.) are 
parties to that certain Sales Tax Sharing Agreement recorded in the real property records 
of Douglas County, Colorado on October 1, 2000 in Book 2155 at Page 1369 (as 
modified by that certain Memorandum of Understanding dated May 1, 2012 among 
RidgeGate, the City and the District, the “STSA”).  Capitalized terms used herein and not 
defined shall have the meanings given such terms in the STSA. 

 B. Simultaneously with the execution of this Amendment, RidgeGate, the 
City and Rampart Range Metropolitan District No. 1 (the "District") are entering into an 
agreement (the "West Side Agreement") regarding dedication, acceptance and 
maintenance of public improvements on the portion of the Property located on the west 
side of I-25 (the "West Side Property"), and the sharing of Sales Tax revenues generated 
from transactions occurring within, and the taxable exercise of any privilege on or with 
respect to, the West Side Property. 
 
 C. In connection therewith, RidgeGate and the City desire to exclude the 
West Side Property from the provisions of the STSA, so that the STSA shall hereafter 
apply only to the portion of the Property located on the east side of I-25 (the "East Side 
Property"). 
 

Amendment 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, RidgeGate and the City hereby agree as 
follows: 
 

1. Amendment.  Subject to Section 2 below, the last Recital and all of 
Sections I, II and III of the STSA are hereby amended by substituting the words "East 
Side Property" in place of the word "Property" in each instance where the latter appears 
therein, and the addresses for notices to RidgeGate in Section 3(H) of the STSA are 
amended to read as follows:. 

 
To RidgeGate:: RidgeGate Investments, Inc. 
   c/o Coventry Development Corporation 
   1041 Third Avenue, 2nd Floor 
   New York, New York  10065 
   Attn:  Robert Asselbergs 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 152 of 154



 

438051.2 2 

with a copy to:  RidgeGate Investments, Inc. 
   c/o Coventry Development Corporation 
   10270 Commonwealth Street, Suite B 
   Lone Tree, Colorado  80124 
   Attn:  Keith Simon 

with a copy to:  Robinson Waters & O'Dorisio, P.C. 
   1099 18th Street, Suite 2600 
   Denver, Colorado  80202 
   Attn:  Paul Timmins 

 
2.  Except as specifically amended hereby, the STSA is not altered or amended, 

and it remains in full force and effect. 

 
EXECUTED as of the date first set forth above. 
 

RIDGEGATE INVESTMENTS, INC., 
a Delaware corporation 
 

 
By:_________________________________  

      Robert Asselbergs, President 
 
 
 

CITY OF LONE TREE, COLORADO, 
 
 
 
By:_______________________________________ 
      _______________________, _______________ 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
City Clerk 

 

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 153 of 154



PARKWAY DR

PARK M
EADOWS D

R

COUNTY LINE RD

LO
N

E
 T

R
E

E
 P

K
W

Y

HERITAGE HILLS CIR

C
H

E
S

TE
R

 S
T

A
C

R
E

S
 G

R
E

E
N

 D
R

HERITAGE HILLS PKWY

YO
SE

M
IT

E
 S

T

LONE T
REE P

KW
Y

H
E

R
IT

A
G

E
 H

IL
L

S
 P

K
W

Y

FAIR
VIEW D

R

P
A

R
K

 M
E

A
D

O
W

S
 D

R

PA
R

K
 M

EA
D

O
W

S D
R

TIMBERLINE RD

FAIRVIEW DR

LINCOLN AVE LINCOLN AVE

TIMBERLINE RD

LINCOLN AVE

PARKWAY DR

YOSEMITE ST

Y
O

S
E

M
IT

E
 S

T

LONE TREE PKWY

COUNTY LINE RD

HERITAGE HILLS CIR

RIDGEGATE CIR

W
E

S
T

 P
A

R
K

E
R

 R
D

RIDGEGATE PKWY

P
A

R
K

 M
E

A
D

O
W

S
 B

L
V

D

D
A

C
R

E
 P

L

LIE
T

E
R

 P
L

TEDDY LN

PR
ES

TW
IC

K 
TR

L

M
IL

E
S

 D
R

ERIN
 P

L

S
A

G
E

B
R

U
S

H
 T

R
L

W
ILL

O
W

 S
T

W
ITNEY PL

BANTRY CT

ARRO
W

HEAD W
AY

P
A

R
K

 M
E

A
D

O
W

S
 C

E
N

T
E

R
 D

R

ARUNDEL LN

P
IN

Y
O

N
 TR

L

MARIN CT

T
E

T
O

N
 C

T

PIRLOT PL

A
S

P
E

N
 H

IL
L 

C
IR

POWDERHORN DR

B
R

O
N

T
I C

IR

STAR HILL LN

S
U

N
S

E
T

 H
IL

L 
D

R

TROTTER LN

F
O

R
S

S
T

R
O

M
 D

R

M
ER

ED
IT

H
 C

T

LEBRUN CT

FIE
S

TA
 TE

R

HARBORTOW
N P

L

ROSEMONT AVE

SUN
SET H

ILL PL

A
R

M
A

D
IL

L
O

 D
R

OBAN CT

W
E

E
D

E
N

 P
L

ARAVON CT

BAUER
 C

T

COVE CT

HEXTON CT

CEDAR HILL
WAY

A
N

D
R

U
S

H
 C

T

ASTORIA CT

TRADITION PL

HIDDEN HILL LN

O
A

K
 T

R
E

E
 C

T

S
E

V
E

N
 A

R
R

O
W

S
 T

R
L

WESTVIEW RD

R
IT

E
N

O
U

R
 C

T

CEDAR HILL PL

A
S

P
E

N
 H

IL
L 

W
A

Y

DUNSFORD DR

LO
N

G
V

IE
W

 D
R

C
A

R
R

IA
G

E
 C

LU
B

 D
R

N
A

M
B

E
 T

R
L

AUGUSTA PL

EDGEW
ATER C

T

KINGS MILL LN

W
O

L
F

D
A

LE
 D

R

LO
S

T
 H

ILL
 D

R

BROOK HILL LN

LONE OAK CT

B
R

O
O

K
 H

IL
L

 A
V

E

EAGLE F
EATHER W

AY

IN
D

IA
N

 W
E

LL
S

 D
R

W
INTER W

AY

PRAIRIECIR

P
T

A
R

M
IG

A
N

 T
R

L

A
S

P
E

N
 H

IL
L 

D
R

CLEAR W
ATER D

R

TROON VILLAGE DR

P
O

U
D

R
E

 C
T

B
A

Y

H
ILL

W
A

Y

TALL GRASS
PL

STAR HILL
PT

S
ILE

N
T

 H
IL

LS

D
R

HI
DD

EN
 H

IL
L 

PL

G
E

N
E

S
E

E
C

T

LO
D

G
E

P
O

LE
 T

R
L

LA
 Q

U
IN

T
A

 D
R

INDIAN

WELLS

CV

LA QUINTA

PL

G
R

E
E

N
IS

LA
N

D
 P

L

GRAND CYPRESS LN

FIRESTONE CIR

S
W

E
E

T
W

A
T

E
R

 R
D

SUNNING
DALE BLVD

LA QUINTA
CV

FAIRVIEW
OAKS

PL SHADO
W

 HILL CT

INDIAN WELLS
LN

S
H

A
D

O
W

 H
IL

L 
C

IR

G
R

E
E

N
S

V
IE

W
 C

IR

C
AC

TU
S

 C
T

E
R

M
IN

E
D

A
LE

 D
R

CRO
SBY D

R

LA QUINTA
LN

K
E

M
P

E
R

 D
R

CYPR
ESS PO

IN
T CIR

BAY HILL DR

MEADOW HILL CIR

OAK B
RUSH W

AY

BR
O

O
K 

LN

R
A

T
T

LE
S

N
A

K
E

 D
R

S
IL

V
E

R
 H

IL
L 

C
IR

LAS CO
LINASDR

C
O

LI
N

A
D

E
 D

R

SAWGRASS DR

SUNSET HILL CIR

BROOK LN

P
T

A
R

M
IG

A
N

 T
R

L

CARRIAGE CLUB DR

LA
 C

O
S

T
A

 LN

SW
EETW

ATER R
D

S
T

A
R

 H
ILL

 T
R

L

COLONIAL DR

S
T

O
N

E
G

LE
N

 T
R

L

CHAPARRAL RD

C
A

R
R

IA
G

E
 C

LU
B

 D
R

C
E

D
A

R
 H

IL
L 

W
A

Y

GREEN IS
LAND C

IR

KIMMER DR

LA
S

 C
O

LIN
A

S
 D

R

LO
N

G
V

IE
W

 D
R

B
R

O
O

K
 H

IL
L

 L
N

LOST HILL DR

D
U

N
S

F
O

R
D

 D
R

LO
DGEPOLE

 T
RL

S
U

N
S

E
T

 H
IL

L 
C

IR

S
W

E
E

T
W

A
T

E
R

 R
D

K
E

M
P

E
R

 D
R

B
A

U
E

R
 C

T

B
A

Y
 H

IL
L

 D
R

D
U

N
S

F
O

R
D

 D
R

ASPEN HILL LN

M
A

D
R

E
 P

L

TR
O

O
N

 V
IL

LA
G

E
 D

R

FIESTA TERRACE

H
ID

D
E

N
 H

IL
L L

N

P
A

R
K

L
A

N
D

 R
D

H
ID

D
E

N
 H

IL
L C

T

LEBRUN CT

LO
N

G
V

IE
W

 D
R

SWEETWATER RD

LO
DG

EPO
LE

 T
RL

ASPEN HILL CIR

M
E

R
E

D
IT

H
 C

T

C
A

R
M

E
L 

C
T

LINCOLN AVE

T
IB

U
R

O
N

C
T

BARKWAY CT

CROOKEDSTICK PL

C
R

O
O

K
E

D
 S

T
IC

K
 T

R
L

S
T

O
N

E
G

LE
N

 T
R

L

Y
O

S
E

M
IT

E
 S

T

B
R

O
O

K
 H

IL
L 

C
T

SHADOW HILL CIR

STAR HILL CIR

S
T

A
R

 H
IL

L
 C

IR

LOST HILL TRL

S
T

A
R

 H
IL

L
 C

IR

STAR HILL TRL

ASPEN HILL PL

PARK MEADOWS DR

KACHINA WAY

TA
O

S
 T

R
L

MESQUITE ROW

SHOAL CREEK
LN

NOTTS
CT

SOUTHERN HILLS CIR

TR
O

O
N

 V
IL

LA
G

E
 D

R

FAIRVIEW
OAKSWAY

FAIRVIEW
OAKS

LN

F
A

IR
V

IE
W

P
L

FAIR
VIEW

W
AY

T
A

LL
 G

R
A

S
S

 C
IR

FAIRVIEW

CT

E
D

G
E

W
A

T
E

R
 P

L

C
Y

P
R

E
S

S
 P

O
IN

T
 C

IR

P
E

B
B

LE
B

E
A

C
H

 L
N

INDIAN
WELLS
CT

INDIAN WELLS WAY

INDIANWELLSPL

LA
QUINTA

BAY

LA QUINTACT

LA
 Q

U
IN

T
A

W
A

Y

DEERCREST W
AY

BLUEFOX
CT

EAGLE
FEATHER

CT

ARRO
W

HEAD

CT

LONE MAPLE
LN

SILVERWEED WAY

B
R

IS
TLE

C
O

N
E

 P
L

S
C

R
U

B
 O

A
K

 D
R

WILDFLOWER
PL

B
IG

H
O

R
N

T
R

L

OAK BRUSH WAY

CLUB TERRACE DR

LIM
BER

W
AY

PARK MEADOWS CENTER DR

L:
\M

a
p

s\
A

nn
e

xa
tio

n
\C

ity
A

nn
e

xa
tio

n
s.

m
xd

μ
0 0.5 1

Miles

Not in City Limits

Not in 
City Limits

Not in 
City Limits

§̈¦25

§̈¦25

August 2013

Annexation History
City of Lone Tree

Douglas County, Colorado

Lincoln Self Storage Annexation; 8/2003

Southridge Preserve Annexation; 12/2003

Current City of Lone Tree Boundary

Kaiser Permanente Annexation; 2/2012

Heritage Hills Filing 1-N Annexation; 7/2010

Golf Course Annexation; 3/2005

Park Meadows Mall Annexation; 12/2006

Heritage Hills Filing 1-L Annexation; 10/2005

Omnipark Annexation; 6/2013

Heritage Hills Filing 1-K Annexation; 4/2004

Annexations by Date

C-470 Joint Venture Annexation; 3/2000

Original Lone Tree Boundary; Incorporated, 1995

Ridgegate Annexations 1-4; 9/2000

Park Meadows Filing No. 2, Maps 1-5 Annexation; 12/1998

Park Meadows Filing No. 2, Map 6 Annexation; 10/1999

Centennial Ridge & Carriage Club Annexations; 12/2001

Heritage Hills Filings 1-H2 & 1-J Annexations; 7/2003

Heritage Hills Annexation; 10/2001

Applebee's Annexation; 1/2000

12/16/14 City Council Packet Page 154 of 154


	2014-12-16 CC Agenda
	2014-12-16 CC Agenda
	2014-12-02 CC Minutes
	1of2 2014 Lincoln Ped Bridge Concept Design
	1of2 Staff  Report Arts Center First Amended MOU
	2of2 First Amendment MOU Arts Center Property
	Res 14-23 Complete
	1of3 Res14-23Budget Memo - Budget Adoption 12-16
	2of3 Res 14-23 Adopt2015LTBudget
	3of3 Res 14-23 Lone Tree Budget - 2015 Version 3-CITY COUNCIL 12-1-14 - Budget Adoption - PUBLIC

	1od2 Res14-24 Budget Memo - Budget Amendment 12-16-14
	2of2 Res 14-24 2014 Budget Amendment - RidgeGate Fund
	3of3 Res14-24 2014 Budget Amendment - RidgeGate Fund
	1of3 Res 14-25 2015 AdministrativeMatters Memo
	2of3 Res14-24 2014 Budget Amendment
	3of3 Res 14-25 zoning_Official_1214



